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East Newark Public School

William Shlala 501-11 North Third Street
Superintendent/Principal East Newark, NJ 07029
(873) 481-6800

Fax# (973) 485-1344

October 8, 2012

Members of the Board of Education
East Newark School District
County of Hudson, New Jersey

Dear Board Members:

The Comprehensive Annua! Financial Report of the East Newark Berough School District (District) for the
fiscal year ended June 30, 2012, is hereby submitted. Responsibiiity for both the accuracy of the data and
completeness and faimess of the presentation, including all disclosures, rests with the management of the
Board of Education.

To the best of our knowledge and belief, the data presented in this report is accurate in all material respects
and is reported in a manner designed fo present fairly the financial position and results of operations of the
various funds and account groups of the District. All disclosures necessary to enable the reader to gain an
understanding of the District’s financial activities have been included.

The Comprehensive Annual Financial Report is presented in four sections: introductery, financial, statistical
and single audit. The introductory section includes this transmittal letter, the District's organizational chart
and a list of principal officials. The financial section includes the general purpose financial statements and
schedules, as well as the auditor's report thereon. The statistical section includes selected financial and
demographic information, generally presented on a multi-year basis. This District is required to undergo an
annual single audit in conformity with the provisions of the Single Audit Act Amendment of 1996 and the U.S.
Office of Management and Budget Circular A-133, Audits of States, Local Governments, and Nonprofit
Organizations; and the State Treasury Circular Letter 04-04 OMB “Single Audit Policy for Recipients of
Federal Grants, State Grants and State Aid’.

Information related to this single audit, including the auditor's report on the internal control structure and
compliance with applicable laws and regulations and findings and recommendations, are included in the
single audit section of this report.

1) REPORTING ENTITY AND ITS SERVICES

The East Newark Borough School District is an independent reporting entity within the criteria
adopted by the Governmental Accounting Standards Board (GASB) as established by GASB
Statement No. 14. All funds and account groups of the District are included in this report. The East
Newark Borough Board of Education and all its schools constitute the District's reporting entity.

THE EAST NEWARK SCHOOL DISTRICT — AN AFFIRMATIVE ACTION/EQUAL -CPPORTUNITY EMPLOYER



1)

2)

3)

REPORTING ENTITY AND ITS SERVICES (Continued)

The District provides a full range of educational services appropriate to grade levels Kindergarten
through 8. The District completed the 2011-2012 school year with an enroliment of 238 students.
The following details the changes in the student enroliment of the District over the last five years:

Fiscal Student Percent

Year Enrollment Change
201112 238 -0.01%
2010-11 241 4.78%
2008-10 230 -4.96%
2008-09 242 10.10%
2007-08 219 0.05%

ECONOMIC CONDITION AND OUTLOOK

The Borough is an established town with little changes likely.

MAJOR INITIATIVES

Students in each classroom, Pre-K through 8, as well as Bilingual, Resource Center, Basic Skills
rooms and LEP, small instructional areas have daily access to at least two computer setups. All of
the computers in the school building have been wired for networking.

Preschool

Commencing September 1997, the East Newark Borough School District has instituted an inclusive
Preschool Program for the children of East Newark. This program is now full-time with an enrollment
of 16 students this past school year.

Extended Day Program and Summer Program

The District has initiated an extended day program to provide additional assistance to LEP students,
Basic Skills Language and Mathematics students, and GEPA, NJASK 3 through NJASK 7, language
and math assistance to third through eighth grade students. This program was instituted in order to
build self-esteem and to insure that all of our students will be prepared to meet the New Jersey State
Core Curriculum Standards. A Summer Program also is designed to assist students for the GEPA
NJASK 3 through NJASK 7.

Construction Services

The District during the 2010-2011 School year authorized and completed major repairs to the roof at
the School. During the 2011-2012 School year, the School District authorized replacement of the
HVAC throughout the Schoaol.

Multicultural Studies - Holocaust - Substance Awareness

Incorporated within each of the curriculums are studies on multiculturalism and the holocaust.

Gifted and Talented

Qur students continue to be involved in an in-depth language program as well as participate in
countrywide Gifted and Talented Programs.



4)

5)

6)

7)

INTERNAL ACCOUNTING CONTROLS

Management of the District is responsible for establishing and maintaining an internal control
structure designed to ensure that the assets of the District are protected from loss, theft or misuse
and to ensure that adequate accounting data are complied to allow for the preparation of financial
statements in conformity with generally accepted accounting principles (GAAP). The internal control
structure is designed to provide reasonable, but not absclute, assurance that these objectives are
met. The concept of reasonable assurance recognizes that: (1) the cost of a control should not
exceed the benefits likely to be derived; and (2) the valuation of costs and benefits requires estimates
and judgments by management.

As a recipient of federal and state financial assistance, the District is also responsible for ensuring
that an adequate internal control structure is in place to ensure compliance with applicable laws and
regulations related to those programs. This internal control structure is subject to pericdic evaluation
by the District management.

As part of the District’'s single audit described earlier, tests are made to determine the adequacy of

the internal contral structure, including that portion related to federal and state financial assistance
programs, as well as to determine that the District has complied with applicable laws and regulations.

BUDGETARY CONTROLS

In addition to internal accounting controls, the District maintains budgetary controls. The objective of
these budgetary controls is to insure compliance with legal provisions embodied in the annual
appropriated budget approved by the voters of the municipality. Annual appropriated budgets are
adopted for the general fund, the special revenue fund and the debt service fund. Perfect-length
budgets are approved for the capital improvements accounted for in the capital projects fund. The
final budget amount as amended for the fiscal year is reflected in the financial section.

An encumbrance accounting system is used to record outstanding purchase commitments on a line
item basis. Open encumbrances at year-end are either cancelled or are included as re-appropriation
of fund halance in the subsequent year.

Those amounts to be re-appropriated are reported as reservations of fund balance at June 30, 2012.

ACCOUNTING SYSTEM AND REPORTS

The District’s accounting records reflect generally accepted accounting principles, as promulgated by
the Governmental Accounting Standards Board (GASB). The accounting system of the District is
organized on the basis of funds and account groups. These funds and account groups are explained
in “Notes to the Financial Statements”, Note 2.

FINANCIAL INFORMATION AT FISCAL YEAR-END

As demonstrated by the various statements and schedules included in the financial section of this
report, the District continues to meet its responsibility for sound financial management. The following
schedule presents a summary of the general fund and special revenue fund for the fiscal year ended
June 30, 2012.

% of Increase Percent
Revenue Amount Total {Decrease) of Change
Local Sources $1,275,036.96 23.63 % 3 6,789.41 053 %
State Sources 3,458,837.74 64.10 216,642.87 6.64
Federal Sources 662,200.7% 12.27 367,552.85 124.81

Total $ 5,396,075.49 100.00 % $ 590,985.13




7) FINANCIAL INFORMATION AT FISCAL YEAR-END (Continued)

The following schedule presents a summary of the general fund and special revenue fund
expenditures for the fiscal year ended June 30, 2012:

% of Increase Percent
Expenditures Amount Total {Decrease) of Change
Current Expense
Instruction $1,350,495.53 26.63 % $ 271,760.95 25.13%
Undistributed
Expenditures 3,720,920.28 73.37 230,779.17 6.61%
Total $5,071,415.81 100.00 % $ 502,540.12

8) DEBT ADMINISTRATION

East Newark is a Type | School District, and as such, all debt is municipal debt for school purposes.
There is no outstanding school debt as of June 30, 2012,

9) CASH MANAGEMENT

The investment policy of the District is guided in large part by state statute as detailed in “Notes to the
Financial Statements”, Note 2. The District has adopted a cash management plan which requires it to
deposit public funds in public depositories protected from loss under the provisions of the
Governmental Unit Deposit Protection Act (*GUDPA™). GUDPA was enacted in 1970 to protect
governmental units from a loss of funds on deposit with a failed banking institution in New Jersey.
The law requires governmental units to deposit public funds only in public depositories located in New
Jersey, where the funds are secured in accordance with the act.

10) RISK MANAGEMENT

The Board carries various forms of insurance, including, but not limited to general liability, automaobile
liability and comprehensive/collision, hazard and theft insurance on property and contents, and fidelity
bonds.

11) OTHER INFORMATION

Independent Audit

State statutes require an annual audit by independent certified public accountants or registered
municipal accountants. The accounting firm of Samuel Kiein and Company, Ceriified Public
Accountants, was selected by the Board. In addition to meeting the requirements set forth in state
statutes, the audit also was designed to meet the requirements of the Single Audit Act Amendment of
1996 and the related OMB Circular A-133 and State Treasury Circular Letter 04-04 OMB. The
auditor’s report on the general purpose financial statements and combining and individual fund
statements and schedules is included in the financial section of this report. The auditor's report
related specifically to the single audit is included in the single audit section of this report.



12) ACKNOWLEDGMENTS

We would like to express our appreciation to the members of the East Newark Borough School Board
for the concern in providing fiscal accountability to the citizens and taxpayers of the School District
and thereby contributing their full support to the development and maintenance of our financial
operation. The preparation of this reportt could not have been accomplished without the efficient and
dedicated services of our financial and accounting staff.

Respectfully submitted,

_ , j.ff ¢ gr '
William Shiala R. Paul Vizzidsd

Superintendent of Schools School Business Administrator
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SAMUEREL KLEIN AND COMPANY

CERTIFIED PUBLIC ACCOUNTANTS

550 BrRoAD STREET, 11TE FLOOR 36 WesT MaIN StrEET, STITE 303
- NewarEr, N.J.Q7102-4543 FresmnoLrD, NJ. 07728-2291

PrHONE(©73)624-G100 PHONE (7832) 780-2600

Fax (973) 624-6101 Fax (732) 780-1030

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT

The Honorable President and Members
of the Board of Education

East Newark Borough Board of Education

County of Hudson .

East Newark, New Jersey 07029

We have audited the accompanying financial statements of the governmental activities, the business-type
activities and each major fund and the aggregate remaining fund information of the Board of Education of the
East Newark Borough School District in the County of Hudson, State of New Jersey, as of and for the year
ended June 30, 2012, which collectively comprise the School District's basic financial statements as listed in
the table of contents. These financial statements are the responsibility of the East Newark Borough School
District’'s management. Our responsibility is to express opinions on these financial statements based on our
audit. '

We conducted our audit in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of
America; the standards applicable to financial audits contained in Government Auditing Standards issued by
the Comptroller General of the United States; and audit requirements as prescribed by the Office of School
Finance, Department of Education, State of New Jersey. An audit includes consideration of internal control
over financial reperting as a basis for designing audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances,
but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the East Newark Borough School
District's internal control over financial reporting. Accordingly, we express no opinion. An audit also includes
examining, on a test basis, evidence supporting the amounts and disclosures in the financial statements,
assessing the accounting principles used and significant estimates made by management, as well as
evaluating the overall financial statement presentation. We believe that our audit provides a reasonable basis
for our opinions.

In our opinion, the financial statements referred to above present fairly, in all material respects, the respective
financial position of the governmental activities, the business-type activities, each major fund and the
aggregate remaining fund information of the East Newark Borough Board of Education, in the County of
Hudson, State of New Jersey, as of June 30, 2012, and the respective changes in financial position and cash
flows, where applicable, for the year then ended in conformity with accounting principles generally accepted in
the United States of America.

In accordance with Government Auditing Standards, we have also issued our report dated October 8, 2012
on our consideration of the East Newark Borough Board of Education’s internal control over financial reporting
and on our tests of its compliance with certain provisions of laws, regulations, contracts and grant agreements
and other matters. The purpose of that report is to describe the scope of our testing of internal control over
financial reporting and compliance and the results of that testing, and not to provide an opinicn on the internal
control over financial reporting or on compliance. That report is an integral part of an audit performed in
accordance with Government Auditing Standards and should be considered in assessing the results of our
audit.

MEMBERS AMERICAN INSTITUTE OF CERTIFIED PUBLIC ACCOUNTANTS
www.samuelklein-cpa-rma.com
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The Management Discussion and Analysis and Budgetary Comparison Information on pages 14 through 17
are not a required part of the basic financial statements but are supplementary information required by
accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America. We have applied certain limited
procedures, which consisted principally of inquiries of management regarding the methods of measurement
and presentation of the required supplementary information. However, we did not audit the information and
express no opinion on it.

Our audit was conducted for the purpose of forming opinions on the financial statements that collectively
comprise the East Newark Borough Beard of Education’s basic financial statements. The accompanying
introductory section, and other supplementary information such as the combining and individual fund financial
statements, long-term debt schedules and statistical tables are presented for purposes of additional analysis
and are not a required part of the basic financial statements. The combining and individual fund financial
statements and long-term debt schedules have been subjected to the auditing procedures applied in the audit
of the basic financial statements and, in our opinion, are fairly stated in alt material respects in relation to the
basic financial statements taken as a whole. The introductory section and statistical tables have not been
subjected to the auditing procedures applied in the audit of the basic financial statements and accordingly, we
express ne opinion on them.,

The accompanying schedules of expenditures of federal awards and state financial assistance are presented
for purposes of additional analysis as required by U.S. Office of Management and Budget Circular A-133,
Audits of States, Local Governments, and Nonprofit Organizations, and New Jersey OMB’s Circular 04-04,
Single Audit Policy for Recipients of Federal Grants, State Grants and State Aid respectively, and are not a
required part of the basic financial statements. Such information has been subjected to the auditing
procedures applied in the audit of the basic financial statements and, in our opinion, is fairly stated in all
material respects in relation to the basic financial statements taken as a whole.

de Pulic School Accountant #194

SAMUEL KLEIN AND COMPANY
CERTIFIED PUBLIC ACCOUNTANTS

/ JOS J. FACCONE
A Lice

Newark, New Jersey
October 8, 2012
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East Newark Public School

William Shiala 501-11 Notth Third Street
Superintendent/Principal East Newark, NJ 07029
(973) 481-6800

Fax# (973) 485-1344

October 8, 2012

The Honorable President and Members
of the Board of Education

East Newark Borough Board of Education

501-11 North Third Street

East Newark, New Jersey 07029

Dear Board Members:
Management’s Discussion and Analysis of Financial Statements

The following analysis of East Newark Borough Board of Education’s financial performance provides a
summaty of the District's financial integrity. The intent of the analysis is to provide an interpretation of the
financial statements. This is the seventh year of the State Mandated GASB 34 reporting for school districts.
As you know, school districts operate as a nonprofit organization. Yet, GASB 34 is instrumental in providing
outside entities the opportunity to measure for profit operations. Hence, financial information that is analyzed
utilizing GASB 34 for nonprofit enfities is, in my opinion, irrelevant and misleading. School districts are
required to account for asset depreciation even though the need to match revenues with purchased assets
are nct necessary since all similar purchases are budgeted for in capital outlay and expensed in the operating
year.

Statement of Net Assets and the Statement of Activities

The Statement of Net Assefs provides a summary of assets. This summary includes fixed assets, items
costing more than $2,000 each, and their accumulated depreciation. Accumulated depreciation is the yearly
costing of an asset's useful life. Accrual accounting is utilized as prescribed by GAAP (Generally Accepted
Accounting Principles). A schedule of fixed assets is included below as Table 1.

Fund Financial Statements

School districts utilize two categories for reporting assets. The first category identified as Governmental
Funds, records the most activity. Governmental Funds reflect activity within the following sub-groups:

General Fund (Fund 10)

Fund 11 Distributed and Undistributed Instructional Accounts - Asset Producing
Fund 12 Capital Cutlay - Asset Producing
Fund 13 Special Schools - Non-Asset Preducing

Special Revenue {(Fund 20)

Fund 20 Granis and Entitlements - Asset Producing

THE EAST NEWARK SCHOOL DISTRICT - AN AFFIRMATIVE ACTION/EQUAL OPPORTUNITY EMPLOYER
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Fund Financial Statements (Continued)

The second category, identified as Business-Type Activities, records assets purchased for the following sub-
group:

Enterprise (Fund 50)

Fund 50 Enterprise/Food Service - Asset Producing

Government Funds

Table 1

Fixed Assets

Beginning Ending
Balance Additions Retirements Balance
Non-Depreciated Assets
Land $ 153,681 $ 5 $ 153,681
Total Non-Depreciated Assets 153,681 153,681
Depreciated Assets
Building and Improvements 1,744,129 276,345 2,020,474
Vehicles 40,520 46,679 87,199
Machinery and Equipment 228,239 53,082 281,321
Total Depreciated Assets 2,012,888 376,106 2,388,994
Total Assets 2,166,569 376,106 2,542 875
Less Accumulated Depreciation:
Building and Improvements (1,744,128} (13,817) {1,757,946)
Vehicles (12,662} (10,200) (23,562)
Machinery and Equipment (214,183) (19,364) (233,547}
Total Accumulated Depreciation (1,970,974) (44,081) (2,015,055)
Total Assets, Net Depreciation
Governmental Activities $ 195,595 $332,025 $ - $ 527,620
Long-Term Debt
Beginning Ending
Balance Retirements Balance
Compensated Absences $235,027.89 $ 34,175.51 $200,852.38

The above schedule includes current debt liabilities, which are not expected to be paid within one year.



Long-term liabilities generally include debt issuances, lease-purchase agreements, capital leases, operating
leases with scheduled rent increases, compensated absences, claims and judgments, early refirement
incentive programs, and rebatable arbitrage. Liabilities that are not directly related to Governmental Funds
and are expected to be paid from Proprietary and Trust Funds are not included above.

The Board of Education is a Type | School District and any debt authorized would be reflected on the records
of the Borough.

Table 2
Change in Net Assets
{Budgetary Basis)

Business-
General Type
Activities Activities
Revenues
Local Taxes $ 1,247,245 $
State/Federal Aid 3,442,142 104,972
Other 27,792 16,053
Total Revenues 4,717,179 121,025
Expenditures
Regular Instruction 789,506
Tuition 1,796,114
Student Support Services 260,808 61,755
Administration 69,335
Maintenance and Operations 260,868
Transportation 68,683
Benefits 452 678 8,331
Special Education 154,392
Cost of Sales 49,206
Other Administrative Services 205,784
Others 153,794
4,212,052 119,292
Increase inNet Assets $ 505,127 $ 1,733

Governmental Activities

Local tax levy is roughly 26% of the District's General Fund source of revenue. Budgeted revenues were
higher due to more than expected interest on investments and refund of prior year expenditures.

Expenditures for tuition for out-of-district placement of regular and classified students equal about 43% of the
operating budget. Instructional expenses equal 19% of the operating budget. Instructional expenses include
teachers’ salaries, supplies and textbooks.

Student Support Services include health, social work, child-study team and guidance support.

Maintenance and Operations are expenses mandated by the State Department of Education to maintain all
building systems. Costs for the maintenance and custodial departments are also included here.

Transportation costs include Special Education and Class Trips.

16



Business Support is expenditures associated with the business and financial aspect of the District.

Expenditures include payroll, transportation, accounting, accounts payable, benefits processing, technology
and personnel departments.

Business Activities

Over the past two years, costs asscciated with operations have decreased significantly through the efforts of
aggressive bidding, efficient and well-defined scope of responsibilities for the busmess departments, and
controliing variable costs like overtime.

Material Account Adjustments for the 2011-2012 School Year

Center % Change Explanation
State Aid 6.40% Increased State Aid

Future Qutlook

The future fiscal outlook for the East Newark Borough Board of Education is favorable. The School District is
sufficiently funded to meet the educational and capital requirements. One concern is the repeated practice of
designated fund balance to offset tax increases.

The primary concern on a global issue is the East Newark Borough's inability to increase the tax base.
Student enroliment has increased consistently for the past seven years. Unfortunately, the Borough's tax
base has remained relatively flat. Furthermore, since the Borough is at full build-out {which means there is no
space available for further development which would increase the ratable base), the likelihood of significant
tax increases on the average homeowner over the next five years is very likely. Additionally, the East Newark
Borough Board of Education is seeking ways to either renovate the existing schocl or to build a new school.

In closing, the Administration is determined to address the educational needs of the students while delivering
a responsible budget to the taxpayers. :
Respectfully submitted,

William $hlala R. Paul Vizzuf?

Superintendent of Schools School Busingss Administrator
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A. DISTRICT-WIDE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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ASSETS

Cash and Cash Equivalents
Receivables, Net
Inventory
Restricted Assets:

Cash and Cash Equivalents
Capital Assets, Net

Total Assets

LIABILITIES

Interfunds Payable
Deferred Revenue
Accounts Payable
Noncurrent Liabilities:
Due Beyond One Year

Total Liabilities

NET ASSETS

Investment in Capital Assets
Restricted for:

Other Purposes
Unrestricted

Total Net Assets

EAST NEWARK BOROUGH SCHOOL DISTRICT

STATEMENT OF NET ASSETS

JUNE 30, 2012

Governmental Business-Type
Activities Activities
$1,574,584 .57 $ 18,598.70
175,743.50 117,983.75
269.24
627,199.43
527,620.00
2,905,157.50 136,849.69
111,039.80
60,056.87
6,397.76
200,852.38
371,949.05 6,397.76
527,620.00
1,872,750.92
132,837.53 130,451.93
$2,533,208.45 $130,451.93

See accompanying notes to financial statements.

Total

$1,593,191.27
293,727.25
269.24

627,199.43
527,620.00

3,042,007.19

111,038.80
60,056.87
6,397.76

200,852.38

378,346.81

527,620.00

1,872,750.92
263,289.46

$2,663,660.38
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B. FUND FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS
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EAST NEWARK BOROUGH SCHOOL DISTRICT

BALANCE SHEET
GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS
JUNE 30, 2012
B-1
Special Capital Total
General Revenue Projects Government
ASSETS Fund Fund Fund Funds
Cash and Cash Equivalents $1,855,055.61 $ 3 $1,855,055.61
Due from State of New Jersey 15,692.90 15,692.90
Due from Federal Government 160,050.60 160,050.60
Interfunds Receivable 632.20 567,629.22 568,261.42
Restricted Cash and Cash Equivalents 627,199.43 627,199.43
Total Assets $ 2,498,580.14 $ 160,050.60 $567,629.22 $ 3,226,259.96
LIABILITIES:
Cash and Cash Equivalents $ $ 99,993.73 $180,467.31 $ 280,451.04
Interfunds Payable 679,301.22 679,301.22
Deferred Revenue 60,056.87 60,056.87
679,301.22 160,050.60 180,467.31 1,019,819.13
FUND BALANCES:
Reserved for:
Encumbrances 11,134.92 11,134.92
Capital Reserve Account 624,570.21 624,570.21
Excess Surplus Designated for Subsequent
Year's Expenditures 338,314.00 338,314.00
Excess Surplus 898,731.79 898,731.79
Unassigned, Reported in:

General Fund {53,472.00) 387,161.91 333,689.91
Total Fund Balances 1,819,278.92 387,161.91 2,206,440.83
Total Liabilities and Fund Balance $2,498,580.14 $ 160,050.60 $567,629.22 $ 3,226,250.96

Total Fund Balance above $2,206,440.83
Amounts reported for governmental activities in the Staterment
of Net Assets (A-1) are different because:
Capital assets used in governmental activities are not
financial resources and therefore are not reported in
the funds. The cost of capital assets is $2,542,675.00
and the accumulated depreciation is $2,015,055.00
(See Note 5). 527,620.00
Long-term liabilities, including bonds, loans and leases
payable are not payable in the current period and
therefore are not reported as liabilities in the funds
(See Note 6). (200,852.38)

Net assets of governmental activities {(A-1) $2,5633,208.45

24



EAST NEWARK BOROUGH SCHOOL DISTRICT
STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES, AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES

Revenues

Local Tax Levy
Miscellaneous
State Sources
Federal Sources
Total Revenues

Expenditures

Current:
Regular Instruction
Special Education Instruction
Other Special Instruction
Other Instruction

Support Services and Undistributed Costs:

Tuition
Student and Instruction Related
Services

School Administrative Services
Other Administrative Services
Plant Cperations and Maintenance
Pupil Transportation
Employee Benefits
Capital Outlay

Total Expenditures

Excess of Revenues Over/(Under)
Expenditures

Other Financing Sources (Uses):
Operating Transfers In
Operating Transfers (Out)

Net Change in Fund Balances

Fund Balance - July 1

Fund Balance - June 30

GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2012

B-2
Special Capital Total
General Revenue Projects Governmental
Fund Fund Fund Funds
$1,247,245.00 $ $1,247,245.00
27,791.96 27,791.96
3,329,637.74 129,300.00 3,458,837.74
112,604.00 549,598.79 662,200.79
4,717,178.70 678,896.79 5,396,075.49
789,505.88 406,598.07 1,196,103.95
54,221.43 54,221 .43
89,139.60 89,139.60
11,030.55 11,030.55
1,796,113.73 117,453.40 1,813,567.13
260,898.77 16,951.31 277,850.08
69,334.56 69,334.56
205,784.26 205,784.26
260,867.89 260,867.89
68,682.87 68,682.87
452,677.59 96,049.82 548,727 41
153,794.58 41,844.16 180,467.31 376,106.08
4,212,051.71 678,896.79 180,467.31 5,071,415.81
505,126.99 {180,467.31) 324,659.68
565,000.00 565,000.00
(565,000.00) (565,000.00)
(565,000.00) 565,000.00 -
(59,873.01) 384,632.69 324,669.68
1,879,151.93 2,629.22 1,881,781.15
$1,819,278.92 $ - $387,161.91 $2,206,440.83

25



EAST NEWARK BOROUGH SCHOOL DISTRICT
RECONCILIATION OF STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES
AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES OF GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS
TO THE STATEMENT OF ACTIVITIES
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2012

B-3
Ref.
Total Net Change in Fund Balances - Governmental Funds B-2 $ 324,659.68
Amounts Reported for Governmental Activities in the
Statement of Aciivities (A-2} are different because:
Capital cutlays are reported in governmental funds as
expenditures. However, in the statement of activities,
the cost of those assets is allocated over their estimated
useful lives as depreciation expense. This is the amount
by which capital outlays exceeded depreciation in the
period.
Depreciation Expense $ (44,081.00)
Capital Outlays - 376,106.00
332,025.00
Increase in Compensated Absences 34,175.51

Change in Net Assets of Governmental Activities A-2 $ 690,860.19



PROPRIETARY FUNDS
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EAST NEWARK BOROUGH SCHOOL DISTRICT
STATEMENT OF NET ASSETS
PROPRIETARY FUNDS
JUNE 30, 2012

Business-Type

Activities
Enterprise Fund
Food
ASSETS Service
Current Assets:
Cash and Cash Equivalents $ 18,596.70
Interfunds Receivable 111,672.00
Accounts Receivable:
State Sources 97.11
Federal Sources 6,214.64
Inventories 269.24
Total Current Assets 136,849.69
Total Assets $ 136,849.69
LIABILITIES
Accounts Payable $ 6,397.76
Total Liabilities $ 6,307.76
NET ASSETS
Unrestricted $ 130,451.93
Total Net Assets $ 130,451.93




EAST NEWARK BOROUGH SCHOOL DISTRICT

COMBINING STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENSES, AND CHANGES IN FUND NET ASSETS

FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2012

Operating Revenues:
Charges for Services:
Daily Sales - Reimbursable Programs
Total Operating Revenues

Operating Expenses:
Cost of Sales
Salaries
Employee Benefits
Purchased Services
Supplies and Materials
Management Fee
Equipment and Repairs
Total Operating Expenses

Operating Loss

Nonoperating Revenues:
State Sources:
~ State School Lunch Program
Federal Sources:
National School Lunch Program
National School Breakfast Program
Interest Revenue
Total Nonoperating Revenues

Change in Net Assets
Total Net Assets - Beginning

Total Net Assets - Ending

PROPRIETARY FUNDS

B-5

Business-Type

Activities

Enterprise Fund

Food
Service

15,943.65

15,943.65

49,205.96
32,612.44
§,330.63
1,695.55
5,251.70
7,474.50
14,721.49

119,292 27

(103,348.62)

1,732.26

80,339.71
22,900.44
109.22

105,081.63

1,733.01

128,718.92

$

130,451.93
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EAST NEWARK BOROUGH SCHOOL DISTRICT
STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS
PROPRIETARY FUNDS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2012

Business-Type

Activities
Enterprise Funds
Food
Service

Cash Flows from Operating Activities
Receipts from Customers ' $ 15,843.65
Payments to Employees {33,690.45)
Payments for Employee Benefits (8,621.15)
Payment to Food Management Company (7,474.50)
Payments to Suppliers (57,653.49)
Payments to Equipment and Repair (14,721.49)
Net Cash Used for Operating Activities (106,217.43)
Cash Flows from Noncapital Financing Activities
State Sources 1,780.28
Federal Sources 106,054.67
Interfund Receipts (22,486.92)
Interest Earned 109.22
Net Cash Provided by Noncapital

Financing Activities 85,457 .25
Net Increase in Cash and Cash Equivalents (20,760.18)
Balances - Beginning of Year 39,356.88
Balances - End of Year 3 18,596.70

Reconciliation of Operating Loss to Net
Cash Used by Operating Activities
Operating Loss $ (103,348.62)
Adjustments to Reconcile Operating Loss fo
Cash Used by Operating Activities:
Change in Assets and Liabilities:

(increase)/Decrease in Inventory 723.72
Increase/(Decrease) in Accounts Payable (3,592.53)

Total Adjustments (2,868.81)
Net Cash Used by Operating Activities $ (106,217.43)
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FIDUCIARY FUNDS
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EAST NEWARK BOROUGH SCHOOI. DISTRICT
STATEMENT OF FIDUCIARY NET ASSETS
FIDUCIARY FUNDS
JUNE 30, 2012

B-7
Agency

ASSETS Fund
Cash and Cash Equivalents $10,702.24
Total Assets ‘ $10,702.24
LIABILITIES
Payable to Student Groups $10,039.26
Interfunds Payable 632.20
Payroll Deductions and Withholdings 30.78
Total Liabilities 10,702.24

NET ASSETS $ -
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EAST NEWARK BOROUGH SCHOOL DISTRICT

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2012

DESCRIPTION CF THE SCHOOL DISTRICT AND REPORTING ENTITY

The East Newark Borough School District (the “District”) is a Type | District located in the County of
Hudson, State of New Jersey. As a Type | District, the members are appointed by the Mayor. A Board of
School Estimate approves the school district levy after the final budget is determined by the Board of
Education (the “Board”). The members of the Board of School Estimate include the Mayor, two members
of the local scheol board and two members of the governing body. The purpose of the District is to
educate students in grades K - 12. The East Newark Borough School District had an approximate
enroliment at June 30, 2012 of 238 students.

A reporting entity is comprised of the primary government, compeonent units, and other organizations that
are included to insure that the financial statements of the School District are not misleading. The primary
government consists of all funds, departments, board, and agencies that are not legally separate from the
School District. For East Newark Borough Local School District, this includes general operations, food
service, and student related activities of the School District.

The primary criterion for including activities within the District's reporting entity, as set forth in Section

2100 of the GASB Codification of Governmental Accounting and Financial Reporting Standards, is
whether:

the organization is legally separate (can sue or be sued in their own name)

the District holds the corporate powers of the organization

the District appeints a voting majority of the organization’s board

the District is able to impaose its will on the organization

the organization has the potential to impose a financial benefit/burden on the District
there is a fiscal dependency by the organization on the District

Based on the aforementioned criteria, the District has no component units.

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

The financial statements of the East Newark Borough Local School District have been prepared in
conformity with generally accepted accounting principles (GAAP) as applied to governmental units. The
Governmental Accounting Standards Board (GASB) is the accepted standard-setting body for
establishing governmental accounting and financial reporting principles. The School District also applies
Financial Accounting Standards Board (FASB) Statements and Interpretations issued on or before
November 30, 1989, to its governmental activities provided they do not conflict with or contradict GASB
pronouncements. The most significant of the School District’'s accounting policies are described below.

A. Basis of Presentation
The Schocl District’s basic financial statements consist of government-wide statements, including a

statement of net assets and a statement of activities, and fund financial statements which provide a
more detailed level of financial information.
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2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES {Continued)

A. Basis of Presentation (Continued)

1.

Government-Wide Financial Statements

The statement of net assets and the statement of activities display information about the
School District as a whole. These statements include the financial activities of the
primary government, except for fiduciary funds.

The statement of net assets presents the financial condition of the governmental activities
of the School District at year-end. The statement of activities presents a comparison
between direct expenses and program revenues for each program or function of the
School District's governmental activities. Direct expenses are those that are specifically
associated with a service, program or department and therefore clearly identifiable to a
particular function. Program revenues include charges paid by the recipient of the goods
or services offered by the program, grants and contributions that are restricted o meeting
the operational or capital requirements of a particular program. Revenues which are not
classified as program revenues are presented as general revenues of the School District,
with certain limited exceptions. The comparison of direct expenses with program
revenues identifies the extent to which each governmental function is self-financing or
draws from the general revenues of the School District.

Fund Financial Statements

During the year, the School District segregates transactions related to certain School
District functions or activities in separate funds in order to aid financial management and
to demonstrate legal compliance.

Fund financial statements are designed to present financial information of the School
District at this more detailed level. The focus of governmental fund financial statements is
on major funds. Each major fund is presented in a separate column.

B. Fund Accounting

The School District uses funds to maintain its financtal records during the fiscal year. A fund is

defined as a fiscal and accounting entity with a self-balancing set of accounts.

1.

Gavernmental Funds

Governmental funds are those through which most governmental functions typically are
financed. Governmental fund reporting focuses on the sources, uses and balances of
current financial resources. Expendable assets are assigned to the various governmental
funds according to the purposes for which they may or must be used. Current liabilities
are assigned to the fund from which they will be paid. The difference between
governmental fund assets and liabilities is reported as fund balance. The following are
the School District's major governmental funds:

General Fund - The General Fund is the general operating fund of the District. It is
used to account for all financial resources except those required to be accounted for
in another fund. Included are certain expenditures for vehicles and movable
instructional or noninstructional equipment which are classified in the Capital Outlay
subfund.

As required by the New Jersey State Department of Education, the District includes
budgeted Capital Outlay in this fund, Generally accepted accounting principles as
they pertain to governmental entities state that General Fund resources may be used
to directly finance capital outlays for long-lived improvements as long as the resources
in such cases are derived exclusively from unrestricted revenues.
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2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)
B. Fund Accounting (Continued)
1. Governmental Funds (Continued)
General Fund (Continued)

Resources for budgeted capital outtay purposes are normally derived from State of
New Jersey Aid, district taxes and appropriated fund balance. Expenditures are those
that result in the acquisition of or additions to fixed assets for land, existing buildings,
improvements of grounds, construction of buildings, additions to or remodeling of
buildings and the purchase of built-in equipment. These resources can be transferred
from and to Current Expense by board resolution.

$pecial Revenue Fund - The Special Revenue Fund is used to account for the
proceeds of specific revenue from State and Federal Government, (other than major
capital projects, Debt Service or the Enterprise Funds} and local appropriations that
are legally restricted to expenditures for specified purposes.

Capital Projects Fund - The Capital Projects Fund is used to account for all financial
resources to be used for the acquisition or construction of major capital facilities (other
than those financed by Proprietary Funds). The financial resources are derived from
temporary notes or serial bonds that are specifically authorized by the voters as a
separate question on the ballot either during the annual election or at a special
election. The District presently has no resources that are considered capital projects
funds.

Debt Service Fund - The Debt Service Fund is used to account for the accumulation
of resources for, and the payment of principal and interest on bonds issued to finance
major property acquisition, construction and improvement programs. The District
presently has no resources that are considered debt service funds.

Permanent Fund - The Permanent Fund is used to account for assets held under the
terms of a formal trust agreement, whereby the District is under obligation to maintain
the trust principal. Resources are legally restricted to the extent that only earnings,
and not principal, may be used for purposes that support the reporting entity's
programs - that is, for the benefit of the school district. The District presently has no
resources that are considered permanent funds.

2. Proprietary Fund Type

The focus of Proprietary Fund measurement is upon determination of net income,
financial position and cash flows. The generally accepted accounting principles
applicable are those similar to businesses in the private sector. The following is a
description of the Proprietary Fund of the District:

Enterprise Fund - The Enterprise Fund is utilized to account for operations that are
financed and operated in 2 manner similar to private business enterprises - where the
intent of the District is that the costs (i.e. expenses including depreciation and indirect
costs) of providing goods or services to the students on a continuing basis be
financed or recovered primarily through user charges; or, where the District has
decided that periodic determination of revenues earned, expenses incurred, and/or
net income is appropriate for capital maintenance, public policy, management control,
accountability or other purposes.

The District's Enterprise Fund is composed of the Food Service Fund.



2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

B.

Fund Accounting {Continued)

2. Proprietary Fund Type (Continued)

3.

Enterprise Fund {Continued)

All proprietary funds are accounted for on a cost of services or “capital maintenance”
measurement focus. This means that all assets and all liabilities, whether current or
noncurrent, associated with their activity are included on their balance sheets. Their
reported fund equity (net total assets) is segregated into contributed capital and
unreserved retained earnings, if applicable. Proprietary fund type operating
statements present increases (revenues) and decreases (expenses) in net total
assefs.

Depreciation of all exhaustive fixed assets used by proprietary funds is charged as an
expense against their operations. Accumulated depreciation is reported on
proprietary fund balance sheets. Depreciation has heen provided over the estimated
useful lives using the straight-line method. The estimated useful lives of the
equipment used in operations of the Enterprise Funds are approximately 10 years.
The Enterprise Fund has no valuation of capital fixed assets.

Internal Service Funds - These funds may be used to report any activity that
provides goods or services to other funds, depariments or agencies of the primary
entity and its component units, or to other governments, on a cost-reimbursement
basis. In addition, internal service funds are used only if the reporting school district is
the predominant participant in the activity. The District does not currently utilize any
internal service funds.

Fiduciary Funds

Fiduciary fund reporting focuses on net assets and changes in net assets. They are
used to account for assets held in a trustee or agency capacity for others and therefore
cannot be used to support the District's own programs. There are four fiduciary fund
types - pension (and other employee benefit} trust funds, investment trust funds, private-
purpose trusts and agency funds. The overarching rule for these funds is that they
should never be used to report resources that can be used for programs of the reporting
district.

Trust and Agency Funds - The Trust and Agency Funds are used to account for

assets held by the District in a trustee capacity or as an agent for individuals, private
organizations, other governments and/or other funds.

Expendable Trust Fund - An Expendable Trust Fund is accounted for in
essentially the same manner as the governmental fund types, using the same
measurement focus and basis of accounting. Expendable Trust Funds account for
assets where both the principal and interest may be spent. The Expendable Trust
Fund includes the Unemployment Compensation Insurance Fund and Scholarship
Funds. The District does not currently utilize any expendable Trust Funds.

Nonexpendable Trust Fund - A Nonexpendable Trust Fund is used to account
for assets held under the terms of a formal trust agreement, whereby the District is
under obligation to maintain the trust principal. The District does not currently
utilize any Nonexpendable Trust Funds.

Agency Funds - Agency Funds are used to account for the assets that the District
holds on behalf of others as their agent. These funds are custodial in nature and
de not involve measurement of results of operations. Agency Funds include
payroli and student activities funds.
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2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

Fund Accounting (Continued)
4. lLong-Term Debt

Long-term liabilities expected to be financed from governmental funds are accounted for
in the General Long-Term Debt, not in the governmental funds. This includes serial
bonds outstanding that are expected to be financed from governmental funds, the
outstanding principal balance on capital leases, Ilease-purchase agreements,
compensated absences, claims and judgments, early retirement incentive programs and
rebatable arbitrage.

C. Measurement Focus

D.

1. Government-Wide Financial Statements

The government-wide financial statements are prepared using the economic resources
measurement focus. All assets and liabilities associated with the operation of the School
District are included on the Statement of Net Assets.

2. Fund Financial Statements

All governmental funds are accounted for using a flow of current financial resources
measurement focus. With this measurement focus, only current assets and current
liabilities generally are included on the balance sheet. The statement of revenues,
expenditures and changes in fund halances reports on the sources (i.e., revenues and
other financing sources) and uses (i.e., expenditures and other financing uses) of current
financial resources. This approach differs from the manner in which the governmental
activities of the government-wide financial statements are prepared. Governmental fund
financial statements therefore include a reconciliation with brief explanations to better
identify the relationship between the government-wide statements and the statements for
governmental funds.,

All proprietary funds are accounted for on a flow of economic resources measurement
focus. With this measurement, all assets and all liabilities associated with the operation
of these funds are included on the balance sheet. Fund equity (i.e., net total assets) is
segregated into contributed capital and retained earnings components. Proprietary fund-
type operating statements present increases (i.e., revenues) and decreases (i.e.,
expenses) in net total assets.

Fiduciary funds are reported using the economic resources measurement focus.

Basis of Accounting

The modified accrual basis of accounting is used for measuring financial position and operating
results of all governmental fund types, expendable trust funds and agency funds. Under the
modified accrual basis of accounting, revenues are recognized when they become both
measurable and available. “Measurable” means the amount of the fransaction can be
determined and “available” means collectible within the current period or scon enough
thereafter to be used to pay liabilities of the current pericd. State equalization monies are
recognized as revenue during the period in which they are appropriated. A one-year availability
period is used for revenue recognition for all other governmental fund revenues. Expenditures
are recognized in the accounting period in which the fund liability is incurred, except for
principal and interest on general long-term debt which are recorded when due.
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2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

D.

Basis of Accounting (Continued)

Ad Valorem {Property) Taxes are susceptible to accrual and under New Jersey State Statute a
municipality is required to remit to its school district the entire balance of taxes in the amount
voted upon or certified, prior to the end of the school year. The District records the entire
approved tax levy as revenue (accrued) at the start of the fiscal year, since the revenue is both
measurable and available. The District is entitled to receive moneys under the established
payment schedule and the unpaid amount is considered to be an "accounts receivable”.

In its accounting and financial reporting, the District follows the pronouncements of the
Governmental Accounting Standards Board (GASB) and the pronouncements of the Financial
Accounting Standards Board (FASB) and its predecessor organizations issued on or before
November 30, 1989, unless they conflict with or contradict GASB pronouncements. The
District's proprietary funds have elected not to apply the standards issued by FASB after
November 30, 198%.

The accrual basis of accounting is used for measuring financial position and operating results
of proprietary fund types and nonexpendable trust funds. Under this method, revenues are
recognized in the accounting pericd in which they are earned and expenses are recognized
when they are incurred.

Budgets/Budgetary Control

Annual appropriated budgets are prepared in the spring of each year for the general, special
revenue, and debt service funds. The budgets are submitted to the County Office for approval
and are voted upon at the annual school election on the third Tuesday in April. Budgets are
prepared using the modified accrual basis of accounting, except for the special revenue fund as
described later. The legal level of budgetary control is established at line item accounts within
each fund. Line item accounts are defined as the lowest (most specific) level of detail as
established pursuant to the minimum chart of accounts referenced in N.J.A.C. 6:20-2A 2(m)1.
Transfers of appropriations may be made by School Board resolution at any time during the
fiscal year subject to the limitation of N.J.A.C. 6A:23A-2.3 (et seq.).

Formal budgetary integration into the accounting system is employed as a management control
device during the year. For governmental funds there are no substantial differences between
the budgetary basis of accounting and generally accepted accounting principles with the
exception of the legally mandated revenue recognition of the last state aid payment for
budgetary purposes only and the special revenue fund as noted below. Encumbrance
accounting is also employed as an extension of formal budgetary integration in the
governmental fund types. Unencumbered appropriations lapse at fiscal year end.

The accounting records of the special revenue fund are maintained on the grant accounting
budgetary basis. The grant accounting budgetary basis differs from GAAP in that the grant
accounting budgetary basis recognizes encumbrances as expenditures and also recognizes
the related revenues, whereas the GAAP basis does not. Sufficient supplemental records are
maintained to allow for the presentation of GAAP basis financial reports.

The following presents a reconciliation of the General Fund Revenue and Special Revenue
Fund Revenue from the budgetary basis of accounting as presented in the Combined
Statement of Revenues, Expenditures and Changes in Fund Balances - Budget and Actual -
General, Special Revenue fo the GAAP basis of accounting as presented in the Combined
Statements of Revenues, Expenditures and Changes in Fund Balances - All Governmental
Fund Types.
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2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

E.

Budgets/Budgetary Control (Continued)

Explanation of Differences Between Budgetary Inflows
and Outflows and GAAP Revenues and Expenditures

General
Fund

Sources/Infiows of Resources:
Actual amounts (budgetary basis) "revenue"
from the budgetary comparison schedule $ 4,726,434.70

Difference - Budget to GAAP:
State aid payments recognized for GAAP
statements in the current year, previously
recognized for budgetary purposes. 306,334.00

State aid payments recognized for budgetary
purposes, not recognized for GAAP statements
until the subsequent year. {315,590.00)

Special
Revenue
Fund

$ 678,896.79

Total revenue as reported on the statement of
revenue, expenditures, and changes in fund
balances - governmental funds $ 471717870

$ 678,896.79

Uses/Outflows of Resources:
Actual amounts (budgetary basis) "total
expenditures” from the budgetary
comparison schedule $ 4,212,051.71

$ 878,806.79

Total expenditures as reported on the statement
of revenue, expenditures, and changes in fund

balances - governmental funds $ 4,212,051.71

$ 678,896.79

Encumbrances

Under encumbrance accounting purchase orders, contracts and other commitments for the
expenditure of resources are reccrded to reserve a portion of the applicable appropriation,
Open encumbrances in governmental funds, other than the special revenue fund, are repcrted
as reservations of fund balances at fiscal year end as they do not constitute expenditures or
liabilities, but rather commitments related to unperformed contracts for goods and services.

Open encumbrances in the special revenue fund, for which the District has received advances,

are reflected in the balance sheet as deferred revenues at fiscal year end.

The encumbered appropriation authority carries over into the next fiscal year. An entry will be
made at the beginning of the next fiscal year to increase the appropriation reflected in the
certified budget by the outstanding encumbrance amount as of the current fiscal year end.



2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOLUINTING POLICIES (Continued)

G.

Cash, Cash Equivalents and Investments

Cash and cash equivalents include petty cash, change funds, cash in banks and all highly
liquid investments with a maturity of three months or less at the time of purchase and are
stated at cost plus accrued interest. U.S. Treasury and agency obligations and certificates of
deposit with maturities of one year or less when purchased are stated at cost.  All other
investments are stated at fair value.

New Jersey school districts are limited to the types of investments and types of financial
institutions they may invest in. New Jersey Statute 18A:20-37 provides a list of permissible
investments that may be purchased by New Jersey schoo! districts.

Additionally, the District has adopted a cash management plan that requires it to deposit
public funds in public depositcries protected from loss under the provisions of the
Governmental Unit Deposit Protection Act ("GUDPA”"). GUDPA was enacted in 1970 fo
protect Governmental Units from a loss of funds on deposit with a failed banking institution in
New Jersey.

N.J.S.A 17:9-41 et seq. establishes the requirements for the security of deposits of
governmental units. The statute requires that no governmental unit shall deposit public funds
in a public depository unless such funds are secured in accordance with the Act. Public
depositories include savings and loan institutions, banks (both state and national banks) and
savings banks the deposits of which are federally insured. All public depositories must pledge
collateral, having a market value at least equal to five percent of the average daily balance of
collected public funds, to secure the deposits of governmental units. If a public depository
fails, the collateral it has pledged, plus the coliateral of all other public depositories, is
available to pay the full amount of their deposits to the Governmental Units.

Inventories and Prepaid Expenses

Inventories and prepaid expenses, which benefit future periods, other than those recorded in
the Enterprise Fund are recorded as an expenditure during the year of purchase.

Inventories in the Proprietary Funds are valued at cost, which approximates market, using the
first-in-first-out {(FIFO) methed. Prepaid expenses in the Enterprise Fund represent payments
made to vendors for services that will benefit pericds beyond June 30, 2012,

Tuition Receivable

Tuition charges were established by the Board of Education based on estimated costs. The
charges are subject to adjustment when the final costs have been determined.

Tuition Payable

Tuition charges for the fiscal years 2010-11 and 2011-12 were based on rates established by
the receiving district. These rates are subject to change when the actual costs have been
determined.

Short-Term Interfund Receivables/Payables

Short-term interfund receivables/payables represent amounts that are owed, other than
charges for goods or services rendered, to/from a particular fund in the District and that are
due within one year.
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2. SUMMARY OF SiGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

L. Capital Assets

General capital assets result from expenditures in the governmental funds. These assets are
reported in the governmental activities column of the government-wide statement of net assets
but are not reported in the fund financial statements.

All capital assets are capitalized at cost (or estimated historical cost) and updated for additions
and retirements during the year. Donated fixed assets are recorded at their fair market values
as of the date received. The District maintains a capitalization threshold of $2,000.00.
Improvements are capitalized; the costs of normal maintenance and repairs that do not add to
the value of the asset or materially extend an assets’ life are not.

All reported capital assets except for land are depreciated. Improvements are depreciated over
the remaining useful lives of the related capital assets. Depreciation is computed using the
straight-line method under the half year convention over the following useful lives:

Asset Class Estimated Lives
School Buildings 50 years
Building Improvements 20 years
Electrical/Plumbing 30 years
Vehicles 8 years
Office and Computer Equipment 5-10 years
Instructional Equipment 10 years
Grounds Equipment 15 years
Food Service Equipment 7 -20 years

M. Compensated Absences

Compensated absences are those absences for which employees will be paid, such as
vacation, sick leave and sabbatical leave. A liability for compensated absences that are
attributable to services already rendered, and that are not contingent on a specific event that is
outside the control of the District and its employees, is accrued as the employees earn the
rights to the benefits. Compensated absences that relate to future services, or that are
contingent on a specific event that is outside the control of the District and its employees, are
accounted for in the period in which such services are rendered or in which such events take
place.

The entire sick leave and vacation leave liabilities are reported on the government-wide
financial statements.

For governmental fund financial statements, the current portion of unpaid compensated
absences is in the amount expected to be paid using expendable available resources. These
amounts are recorded in the account “compensated absences payable” in the fund from which
the employees who have accumulated unpaid leave are paid. The noncurrent portion of the
liability is not reported.

In proprietary and similar trust funds, compensated absences are recorded as an expense and
liability of the fund that will pay for them.



2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

N.

Accrued Liabilities and Long-Term Obligations

All payables, accrued liabilities and long-term obligations are reported in the government-wide
financial statements.

In general, payables and accrued liabilities that, once incurred, are paid in a timely manner
and in fult from current financial resources, are reported as obligations of the governmental
funds. However, the noncurrent portion of capital leases, compensated absences and loans
payable that will be paid from governmental funds are reported as a liability in the fund
financial statements only to the extent that they are normally expected to be paid with
expendable, available financial resources.

Net Assets

Net assets represent the difference between assets and liabilities. Net assets invested in
capital assets, net of related debt consists of capital assets, net of accumulated depreciation,
reduced by the outstanding balances of any borrowings used for the acquisition, construction
or improvement of those assets. Net assets are reported as restricted when there are
limitations imposed on their use either through the enabling legislation adopted by the District
or through external restrictions imposed by creditors, grantors or laws or regulations of other
governments.

Deferred Revenue

Deferred revenue in the general and special revenue fund represent program revenues that
have been received but not yet earned.

Fund Equity

Contributed capital represents the amount of fund capital contributed to the proprietary funds
from other funds. Reserves represent those portions of fund equity not available for
appropriation for expenditure or legally segregated for a specific future use. Designated fund
balances represent plans for future use of financial resources.

Fund Balance Reserves

The Schaool District reserves those portions of fund balance which are legally segregated for a
specific future use or which do not represent available expendable resources and, therefore,
are not available for appropriation or expenditure. Unreserved fund balance indicates that
portion which is available for appropriation in future periods. A fund balance reserve has
been established for encumbrances.

Proprietary Funds Revenues and Expenses

Proprietary funds distinguish operating revenues and expenses from ncnoperating items.
Operating revenues and expenses generally result from providing services in connection with
a proprietary fund's principal ongeoing operations. The principal operating revenues of the
School District enterprise fund, (the Food Service) are charges to customers for sales of food
service. Operating expenses for enterprise funds include the cost of sales and services,
administrative expense and depreciation on Capital Assets. All revenues and expenses not
meeting this definition are reported as nonoperating revenues and expenses.
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2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

T. Rebatable Arbitrage

Rebatable arbitrage results from investing the proceeds of borrowed funds either directly or
indirectly into investments that are higher in yield than the bond yield incurred on the
borrowed funds. In accordance with GASB 34, rebatable arbitrage is treated like a claim or
judgment. All interest income is reporied as revenue of the capital projects fund. The liability,
if any, is recorded in the “Statement of Net Assets”.

U. Non-Monetary Transactions

Commodities received under the Federal Food Distribution Program are received by the
District and are recorded as nonoperating revenue when received in the Food Service
Enterprise Fund at market value. The use of the commodities is included in cost of sales.

V. Allocation of Expenses

The District reports all direct expenses by function in the Statement of Aclivities. Direct
expenses are those that are clearly identifiable with a function. Employee benefits, including
the employer's share of social security, workers' compensation, and medical and dental
benefits, were allocated based on salaries of that program. Depreciation expense, where
practicable, is specifically identified by function and is included in the direct expense column
of the Statement of Activities. Depreciation expense that could not be attributed to a specific
function is reported separately on the Statement of Activities. No expenses were allocated as
“Indirect Expenses”.

W. Extracordinary and Special ltems

Extraordinary items are transactions or events that are unusual in nature and infrequent in
occurrence.  Special items are transactions or events that are within the control of
management and are either unusual in nature or infrequent in occurrence. Neither of these
types of transactions occurred during the fiscal year.

3. CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS AND INVESTMENTS

Cash and cash equivalents includes petty cash, change funds, amounts in deposits, and short-term
investments with original maturities of three months or less,

Investments are stated at cost, which approximates market. The Board classifies certificates of deposit
that have original maturity dates of more than three months but less than twelve months from the date of
purchase, as investments. The District is in compliance with GASB Statement No. 3 as amended by
GASB Statement No. 40.

Deposits

New Jersey statutes require that school districts deposit public funds in public depositories located in New
Jersey which are insured by the Federal Deposit Insurance Corporation, or by any other agency of the
United States that insures deposits made in public depositories. School districts are also permitted to
deposit public funds in the State of New Jersey Cash Management Fund.

New Jersey statutes require public depositories to maintain collateral for deposits of public funds that
exceed depository insurance limits as follows:

The market value of the collateral must equal at least 5% of the average daily balance of
collected public funds on deposit.



3. CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS AND INVESTMENTS (Continued)

Deposits (Continued)

In addition to the above collateral requirement, if the puhlic funds deposited exceed 75% of the capital
funds of the depository, the depository must provide collateral having a market value at least equal to
100% of the amount exceeding 75%.

All collateral must be deposited with the Federal Reserve Bank of New York, the Federal Reserve Bank
of Philadelphia, the Federal Home Loan Bank of New York, or a banking institution that is a member of
the Federal Reserve System and has capital funds of not less than $25,000,000.

As of June 30, 2012, cash and cash equivalents (Deposits) of the District consisted of the following:

Cash and
Cash

Equivalents
Unrestricted $1,603,893.51

Restricted 627,199.43

$2,231,092.94

Of the total amount, deposits of $627,199.43 have been earmarked towards the Capital Reserve Account
{(See Note 4).

Allocation of Cash and Cash Equivalents

Unrestricted $1,603,893.51

Restricted £27,199.43

$2,231,092.94

Investments

New Jersey statutes permit the Board to purchase the following types of securities:
Bonds or other obligations of the United States of America or obligations guaranteed by the
United States of America. This includes instruments such as Treasury bills, notes and
bonds.
Government money market mutual funds.
Any federal agency or instrumentality obligation authorized by Congress that matures within
397days from the date of purchase, and has a fixed rate of interest not dependent on any

index or external factors.

Bonds or other cobligations of the school district or local unit of which the school district is a
part.

Any other obligations with maturities not exceeding 397 days, as permitted by the Division
of Investments, New Jersey State Department of Treasury.

Local government investment pools.
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3. CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS AND INVESTMENTS (Continued)

Investments (Continued)
‘New Jersey State Cash Management Fund.
Repurchase agreements of fully collateralized securities, subject to special conditions.

As of June 30, 2012, the District had no outstanding investments.

4, CAPITAL RESERVE ACCOUNT

A Capital Reserve Account was established by the Borough of East Newark Board of Education by
inctusion of $790,000.00 during Fiscal Year 2003 for the accumulation of funds for use as capital outlay
expenditures in subsequent fiscal years. The capita! reserve account is maintained in the Governmental
Fund and its activity is included in the General Fund annual budget.

Funds placed in the Capital Reserve Account are restricted to capital projects in the District's approved
Long Range Facilities Plan (LRFP). Upon submission of the LRFP to the depariment, a district may
increase the balance in the capital reserve by appropriating funds in the annual general fund budget
certified for taxes. A district may also appropriate additional amounts when the express approval of the
voters has been obtained either by a separate proposal at budget time or by a special question at one of
the four special elections authorized pursuant to N.J.S A. 19:60-2. Pursuant to N.J.A.C. BA:23A-14.1(g),
the balance in the account cannot at any time exceed the local support costs of uncompleted capital
projects in its approved LRFP.

During the fiscal year ended June 30, 2012, the District had actual interest earnings of $3,342.37. During
the 2011-2012 school year, the School District approved the transfer of $565,000.00 out of the Capital

Reserve Account to the Capital Projects Fund. As of June 30, 2012, there remains $624,570.21 in the
Capital Reserve Account.

5. CAPITAL ASSETS

Capital asset activity for the year ended June 30, 2012 was as follows:

Balance Balance
June 30, 2011 Additions June 30, 2012
Govermental Activities
Nondepreciable Assets:
Land $ 153,681 S 5 153,681
Depreciable Assets:
Building and Buildiing Improvements 1,744,129 276,345 2,020,474
Vehicles 40,520 46,679 87,199
Machinery and Equipment 228,239 53,082 281,321
2,166,569 376,106 2,542 675
Less Accumulated Depreciation:
Vehicles (12,662) (10,800) (23,562)
Buiiding and Building Improvements (1,744,129) (13,817) (1,757,946)
Machinery and Equipment (214,183) (19,364) (233,547)
(1,970,974) (44,081) (2,015,055)
Governmental Activities Net Capital Assets % 195595 $ 332.025 $ 527620




6. GENERAL LONG-TERM DEBT

During the fiscal year ended June 30, 2012, the following changes occurred in Long-Term Debt:

Balance Balance
June 30, 2011 Retirements June 30, 2012
Compensated Absences
Payable $235,027.89 $34175.51 $200,852.38

A. Bonds Payable

East Newark is a Type | School District. Bonds are issued for the School District by the
municipality.

B. Bonds Authorized but Not Issued
As of June 30, 2012, the Board had no authorized but not issued bonds.

C. Capital Leases Payable
As of June 30, 2012, the Board had no capital leases.

7. OPERATING LEASES

As of June 30, 2012, the Board had no operating leases.

8. PENSION PLANS

Description of Plans

All required employees of the District are covered by either the Public Employees’ Retirement System or
the Teachers' Pension and Annuity Fund which have been established by state statute and are
administered by the New Jersey Division of Pension and Benefits (Division). According to the State of
New Jersey Administrative Code, all obligations of both systems will be assumed by the State of New
Jersey should the systems terminate. The Division issues a publicly available financial report that
includes the financial statements and required supplementary information for the Public Employees’
Retirement System and the Teachers’ Pension and Annuity Fund. These reports may be obtained by 11
writing to the Division of Pensions and Benefits, P.O. Box 295, Trenton, New Jersey 08625.

Teachers' Pension and Annuity Fund (TPAF)

The Teachers' Pension and Annuity Fund was established as of January 1, 1955, under the provisions of
N.J.S.A. 1BA:66 to provide retirement benefits, death, disability and medical benefits to certain qualified
members. The Teachers' Pension and Annuity Fund is considered a cost-sharing multiple-employer plan
with a special funding situation, as under current statute, all employer contributions are made by the State
of New Jersey On-Behalf of the District and the system's other related noncontributing employers.
Membership is mandatory for substantially all teachers or members of the professional staff certified by
the State Board of Examiners, and employees of the Department of Education who have titles that are
unclassified, professional and certified.



8. PENSION PLANS (Continued)

Public Employees' Retirement System (PERS)

The Public Employees' Retirement System (PERS) was established as of January 1, 1955 under the
provisions of N.J.S.A. 43:15A to provide retirement, death, disability and medical benefits to certain
qualified members. The Public Employees’ Retirement System is a cost-sharing multiple-employer plan.
Membership is mandatory for substantially all full-time employees of the State of New Jersey or any
county county, municipality, school district or public agency, provided the employee is not required to be a
member of another State-administered retirement system or other state or local jurisdiction.

Defined Contribution Retirement Program (DCRP)

This Program was established under the provisions of Chapter 92, P.L. 2007 and Chapter 103, P.L. 2008
to provide coverage to elected and certain appointed officials, effective July 1, 2007. Membership is
mandatory for such individuals with vesting occurring after one (1) year of membership.

Vesting and Benefit Provisions

The vesting and benefit provisions for PERS are set by N.J.S.A. 43:15A and 43.3B, and N.J.5.A. 18A:6C
for TPAF. All benefits vest after eight to ten years of service, except for medical benefits that vest after 25
years of service. Retirement benefits for age and service are available at age 60 and are generally
determined to be 1/55 of the final average salary for each year of service credit, as defined. Final
average salary equals the average salary for the final three years of service prior to retirement {or highest
three years’ compensation if other than the final three years). Members may seek early retirement after
achieving 25 years of service credit or they may elect deferred retirement after achieving eight to ten
years of service in which case benefits would begin the first day of the menth after the member attains
normal retirement age. The TPAF and PERS provide for specified medical benefits for members who
retire after achieving 25 years of qualified service, as defined, or under the disability provisions of the
system.

Members are always fully vested for their own contributions and, after three years of service credit,
become vested for 2% of related interest eamed on the contributions. In the case of death before
retirement, members’ beneficiaries are entitled to full interest credited to the members’ accounts.

Significant Legislation

P.L. 2011, c. 78, effective June 28, 2011, made various changes to the manner in which TPAF and PERS
operate and to the benefit provisions of those systems.

This new legislation’'s provisions impacting employee pension and health benefits include:

» New members of TPAF and PERS hired on or after June 28, 2011 (Tier 5 members), will need
30 years of creditable service and age 85 for receipt of the early retirement benefit without a
reduction of ¥ to 1 percent for each month that the member is under age 65.

» The eligibility age to qualify for a service retirement in the TPAF and PERS is increased from
age 62 to 65 for Tier 5 members.

« The annual benefit under special retirement for new PERS members enrolled after June 28,
2011 (Tier 3 members), will be 60 percent instead of 65 percent of the members financial
compensation plus 1 percent for each year of creditable service over 25 years but not to
exceed 30 years.

« Active member contribution rates will increase. TPAF and PERS active member rates increase
from 5.5 percent of annual compensation to 6.5 percent plus an additional 1 percent phased-in
over 7 years. For Fiscal Year 2012, the member contribution rates increased in October 2011.
The phase-in of the additional incremental member contributions for TPAF and PERS members
will take place in July of each subsequent fiscal year.
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PENSION PLANS (Continued

Significant Legislation (Continued)

+ The payment of automatic cost-of-living adjustment (COLA) additional increases to current and
future retirees and beneficiaries is suspended until reactivated as permitted by this law.

In addition, this new legislation changes the method for amortizing the pension systems’ unfunded
accrued liability (from a level percent of pay methed to a level dollar of pay).

P.L. 2011, c. 78, effective October 2011, sets new employee confribution reguirements towards the cost
of employer-provided health benefit coverage. Employees are required to contribute a certain percentage
of the cost of coverage. The rate of contribution is determined based on the employee’s annual salary
and the selected level of coverage. The increased employee confributions will be phased in over a 4-year
period for those employed prior to this new legislation’s effective date with a minimum contribution
required to be at least 1.5% of salary.

Contribution Requirements

The contribution policy is set by New Jersey State Statutes and, in most retirement systems, contributions
are required by active members and contributing employers. Plan member and employer contributions
may be amended by State of New Jersey legislation. In accordance with the provisions of Chapter 78,
P.L. 2011, employee pension contribution rates for TPAF and PERS is currently 8.5% and 5.5% for
DCRP of employees’ annual compensation, as defined.

Employee contributions for TPAF and PERS employees will be increased from 6.5% to 7.5% to be
phased in equally over a 7 year period beginning July 2012. The confribution rate will. increase by 0.14%
each year with the first payroll of July until the 7.5% contribution rate is reached in July 2018.

Employers are required fo contribute at an actuarially determined rate in both PERS and TPAF. The
actuarially determined employer contribution includes funding for cost-of-living adjustments and
noncontributory death benefits in the TPAF and PERS. In the PERS and TPAF, the employer
contribution includes funding for post-retirement medical premium. Under current statute, the school is a
noncontributing employer of the TPAF.

Three-Year Trend Information for PERS

Annual Percentage
Year Pension of APC
Funding Cost (APC) Contributed
June 30, 2012 $ 20,212.00 * 100%
June 30, 2011 18,914.00 * 100%
June 30, 2010 14,364.00 * 100%

*Offset either totally or partially by pension credits.

Three-Year Trend Information for TPAF
{Paid On-Behalf of the District)

Post-
Annual Percentage Retirement
Year Pension of APC Medical
Funding Cost (APC) Contributed Benefits
June 30, 2012 $ 96,810.00 100% N/A
June 30, 2011 74,901.00 100% N/A
June 30, 2010 64,980.00 100% N/A
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8. PENSION PLANS (Continued

10.

Contribution Requirements (Continued)

During the fiscal year ended June 30, 2012, the State of New Jersey confributed $96,810.00 to the
TPAF for normal pension On-Behalf of the District. Also, in accordance with N.J.S.A. 18A.66-66 the
State of New Jersey reimbursed the District $73,941.74 during the year ended June 30, 2012 for the
empioyers share of social security contributions for TPAF members, as calculated on their base
salaries. This amount has been included in the basic financial statements, and the combining and
individual fund and account group statements and schedules as a revenue and expenditure in
accordance with GASB 27.

Legislation enacted during 1993 provided early retirement incentives for certain members of TPAF and
PERS who met certain age and service requirements and who applied for retirement between certain
dates in the 1994 fiscal year. The early retirement incentives included: (a) an additional five years of
service credit for employees at least age 50 with a minimum of 25 years of service; (b) free health
benefits for employees at least 60 years old with at least 20 years of service; and (¢) an additional $500
per month for two years for employees at least age 60 with 10 but less than 20 years of service. The
Board assumed the increased cost for the early retirement as it affected their District.

POST-RETIREMENT BENEFITS

Chapter 384 of Public Laws 1987 and Chapter 6 of Public Laws 1990 required Teachers’ Pensions and
Annuity Fund {TPAF) and the Public Employees’ Retirement System (PERS), respectively, to fund post-
retirement medical benefits for those State employees who retire after accumulating 25 years of
credited service or on a disability retirement. P.L. 2007, c.103 amended the law fo eliminate the
funding of post-retirement medical benefits through the TPAF and PERS. It created separate funds
outside of the pension plans for the funding and payment of post-retirement medical benefits for retired
State employees and retired educational employees. As of June 30, 2011, there were 93,323 retirees
efigible for post-retirement medical benefits. The cost of these benefits is funded through contributions
by the State in accordance with Chapter 62, P.L. 1994. Funding of post-retirement medical premiums
changed from a prefunding basis io a pay-as-you-go basis beginning in Fiscal Year 1984 with an
additional contribution beginning in Fiscal Year 1986 to maintain a medical reserve of one half of one
percent of the active State payroll.

The State is also responsible for the cost attributable to P.L. 1992, C. 128, which provides free health
benefits to members of PERS and the Alternate Benefit Program who retired from a board of education
or county college with 25 years of service. The State paid $144 million toward Chapter 126 benefits for
15,709 eligible retired members in Fiscal Year 2011.

COMPENSATED ABSENCES

The District accounts for compensated absences (e.g., unused vacation, sick leave) as directed by
Governmental Accounting Standards Board Statement No. 16 (GASB 16), “Accounting for
Compensated Absences”. A liability for compensated absences attributable to services already
rendered and not contingent on a specific event that is cutside the control of the employer and
employee is accrued as employees earn the rights to the benefits.

Bistrict employees are granted varying amounts of vacation and sick leave in accordance with the
District’s personnel policy. Upon termination, employees are paid for accrued vacation. The District's
policy permits employees fo accumulate unused sick leave and carry forward the full amount to
subsequent years. Upon retirement employees shall be paid by the District for the unused sick leave in
accordance with the District’s agreements with the various employee unions.

In the district-wide Statement of Net Assets, the liabilities whose average maturities are greater than
one year should be reported in two components - the amount due within one year as the amount due in
more than cne year.
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10.

1.

12.

13.

14.

COMPENSATED ABSENCES (Continued)

The liability for vested compensated absences of the proprietary fund types is recorded within those
funds as the benefits accrue to employees. As of June 30, 2012, no liability existed for compensated
absences in the Food Service Fund.

DEFERRED COMPENSATION

The Board offers ifs employees a choice of the following deferred compensation plans created in
accordance with Internal Revenue Code Section 403(b). The plans, which are administered by the
entities listed below, permits participants to defer a portion of their salary until future years. Amounts
deferred under the plans are not available io employees until termination, retirement, death or
unforeseeable emergency. The plan administrator is The Variable Annuity Life Insurance Company.

RISK MANAGEMENT

The District is exposed to various risks of loss related to torts; theft of, damage to, and destruction of
assets; errors and omissions; injuries to employees; and natural disasters.

Property and Liability Insurance - The District maintains commercial insurance coverage for property,
liability, student accident and surety bonds. A complete schedule of insurance coverage can be found
in the Statistical Section of this Comprehensive Annual Financial Report.

INTERFUND RECEIVABLES AND PAYABLES

Interfund balances at June 30, 2012 consisted of the following:

interfund Interfund
Receivables Payables
General Fund:
Due to Proprietary Fund $ $ 111,672.00
Due from Fiduciary Fund 632.20
Due to Capital Projects Fund 567,629.22
Fiduciary Fund:
Due to General Fund 632.20
Proprietary Fund:
Due from General Fund 111,672.00
Capital Project Fund:
Due from General Fund 567,629.22
$679,933.42 $ 679,033.42
INVENTORY

The value of Federal donated commodities is the difference between market value and cost of the
commodities at the date of purchase and has been included as an item of nonoperating revenue in the
financial statements.
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15.

16.

17.

18.

FUND BALANCE APPROPRIATED

General Fund - Of the $1,819,278.92 General Fund fund balance reported in Statement “B-1" at June
30, 2012, $11,134.92 is year end encumbrances; $338,314.00 has been appropriated and included as
anticipated revenue for the year ending June 30, 2013; $624,570.21 is for capital reserve; excess
surplus of $898,731.79 and an unassigned balance of $(53,472.00).

DEFICIT FUND BALANCES

The District has an unreserved deficit fund balance of $53,472.00 in the General Fund as of June 30,
2012, as reported in the fund statements (Exhibit B-1} (modified accrual basis). P.L. 2003, ¢.97
provides that in the event a state school aid payment is not made until the following school budget year,
districts must record the last state aid payment as revenue, for budget purposes only, in the current
school budget year. The bill provides legal authority for school districts to recognize this revenue in the
current budget year. For intergovernmental transactions, GASB Statement No. 33 requires that
recognition (revenue, expenditure, asset, liability) should be in symmetry, i.e., if one government
recognizes an asset, the other government recognizes a liability. Since the State is recording the last
state aid payment in the subsequent fiscal year, the school district cannot recognize the last state aid
payment on the GAAP financial statements until the year the State records the payable. Due to the
timing difference of recording the last state aid payment, the General Fund balance unreserved deficit
does not alone indicate that the District is facing financial difficulties.

Pursuant to N.J.S.A. 18A:22-44.2 any negative unreserved, unassigned general fund balance that is
reported as a direct result from a delay in the payment of state aid until the following fiscal year, is not
considered in viclation of New Jersey statute and regulation nor in need of corrective action. The
District deficit in the GAAP funds statements of $53,472.00 is less than the last state aid payment.

CALCULATION OF EXCESS SURPLUS

In accordance with N.J.8.A. 18A:7F-7, as amended by P.L. 2004, C.73 (S1701), the designation for
Reserved Fund Balance - Excess Surplus is a required calculation pursuant to the New Jersey
Comprehensive Educational Improvement and Financing Act of 1996 (CEIFA). New Jersey school
districts are required to reserve General Fund fund balance at the fiscai year end of June 30 if they did
not appropriate a required minimum amount as budgeted fund balance in their subsegquent years
budget. The excess fund balance at June 30, 2012 is $898,731.79.

CONTINGENT LIABILITIES
A. Litigation

The Borough's Attorney letter did not indicate any litigation, claims or contingent liabilities that
would have a material financial impact on the Borough.

B. Federal and State Awards

The School District participates in several federal and state grant and aid pregrams which are
governed by various rules and regulations of the grantor agencies; therefore, to the extent that the
School District has not complied with the rules and regulations governing the grants or aid, refunds
of any money received may be required and the collectibility of any related receivable at June 30,
2012 may be impaired. In the opinion of the management, there are no significant contingent
liabilities relating to compliance with the rules and regulations governing the respective grants,
therefore, no provisions have been recorded in the accompanying general purpose financial
statements for such contingencies. '
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19. RECONCILIATION OF FUND BALANCE - GENERAL FUND

The Surpluses are presented on a GAAP basis and a reconciliation to the budget basis is as follows:

The Surpluses are presented on a GAAP basis and a
reconciliation to the budget basis is as follows:

Balance on a Budget Basis on the General Fund
Budgetary Basis Comparison

Less: Allocation of State Aid Payment of $315,590.00
Recognized on a GAAP Basis

Balances on a GAAP Basis on the Governmental Fund
Balance Sheet

Unreserved and
Designated

$2,134,868.92

315,590.00

$1,819,278.92
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REQUIRED SUPPLEMENTARY INFORMATION - PART |l
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C. BUDGETARY COMPARISON SCHEDULES
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EAST NEWARK BOROUGH SCHOOL DISTRICT
GENERAL FUND
EDUCATION JOBS FUND PROGRAM
BUDGETARY COMPARISON SCHEDULE
FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2012

C-1b
Budget Final
Budgeted Transfers Budget Actual Variance
REVENUES:
Federal Scurces:
Education Jobs Fund Program $109,183.00 $ 3,421.00 $112,604.00 $112,604.00 $
Total Federal Sources 109,183.00 3,421.00 112,604.00 112,604.00
Total Revenues $109,183.00 $3,421.00 $112,604.00 $112,604.00 5 -
EXPENDITURES:
Instruction:
Salaries of Teachers Grades 1-5 $109,183.00 $3,421.00 $112,604.00 $112,604.00 $
Total Instruction 109,183.00 3,421.00 112,604.00 112,604.00
Total Expenditures $109,183.00 $ 3,421.00 $112,804.00 $112,604.00 3 -
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NOTES TO REQUIRED SUPPLEMENTARY INFORMATION
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EAST NEWARK BOROUGH SCHOOL DISTRICT
REQUIRED SUPPLEMENTARY INFORMATION
BUDGET-TOC-GAAP RECONCILIATION
NOTES TO REQUIRED SUPPLEMENTARY INFORMATION
FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2012

Explanation of Differences between Budgetary Inflows and
Outflows and GAAP Revenues and Expenditures

Sources/Inflows of Resources:
Actual amounts (budgetary basis} "revenue” from the
budgetary comparison schedule C-1

Difference - Budget to GAAP:

State aid payments recognized for GAAP statements in
the current year, previously recognized for budgetary
purposes.

State aid payments recognized for budgetary purposes,
not recognized for GAAP statements until the
subsequent year.

Total revenue as reported on the statement of revenue,
expenditures, and changes in fund balances -
governmental funds B-2

Uses/Outflow of Resources:
Actual amounts (budgetary basis) "total expenditures”
from the budgetary comparison schedule C-1

Total expenditures as reported on the statement of
revenue, expenditures, and changes in fund
balances - governmental funds B-2

General
Fund

$4,726,434.70 C-2

306,334.00

(315,590.00)

$4,717,178.70 B-2

$4,212,051.71 c-2

$4,212,051.71 B-2

Special
Revenue
Fund

$678,896.79

_$678,806.79

$678,896.79

$678,896.79
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OTHER SUPPLEMENTARY INFORMATICN
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D. SCHOOL BASED BUDGET SCHEDULES (IF APPLICABLE)
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E. SPECIAL REVENUE FUND
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EAST NEWARK BOROUGH SCHOOL DISTRICT
SPECIAL REVENUE FUND
PRESCHOOL EDUCATION AID SCHEDULE OF EXPENDITURES
BUDGETARY BASIS
FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2012

E-2
Budgeted Actual Variance
Expenditures
Instruction:

Purchased Professional-Educational Services $189,356.00 $129,300.00 $ 60,056.00
Total Instruction $189,356.00 $129,300.00 $ 60,056.00
Total Revised 2011-12 Preschool Education Aid Allocation $ -
Add: Actual Preschool Education Aid Carryover (June 30, 2011) 189,356.87
Total Preschool Education Aid Funds Available for 2011-12 Budget 189,356.87
Less: 2011-12 Budgeted Preschool Education Aid (Including

Prior Year Budget Carryover) 189,356.00
Available and Unbudgeted Preschool Education Aid Funds as
of June 30, 2012 0.87
Add: June 30, 2012 Unexpended Preschool Education Aid 60,056.00
2011-12 Carryover - Preschool Education Aid Programs $ 60,056.87
2011-12 Preschool Education Aid Carryover
Budgeted for Preschool Programs 2012-2013 $ 60,915.00
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F. CAPITAL PROJECTS FUND
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EAST NEWARK BORQUGH SCHOOL DISTRICT
CAPITAL PROJECTS FUND

BUDGETARY BASIS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2012

Revenues and Other Financing
Sources:
Transfer from Capital Reserve
Total Revenues

Expenditures and Other Financing
Sources:

Purchased Professional and Technical Services
Construction Services

Excess (Deficiency) of Revenues Over/(Under)
Expenditures
Fund Balance - Beginning

Fund Balance - Ending

SUMMARY SCHEDULE OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCE

$ 565,000.00

565,000.00

34,108.81
146,358.50

180,467.31

384,5632.69

2,628.22

$ 387,161.91
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EAST NEWARK BOROUGH SCHOOL DISTRICT
CAPITAL PROJECTS FUND
SCHEDULE OF PROJECT REVENUES, EXPENDITURES, PROJECT BALANCE AND PROJECT STATUS
BUDGETARY BASIS
ROOF REPAIRS
FROM INCEPTION AND FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2012

Revenues and Other Financing
Sources:
Transfer from Capital Reserve
Total Revenues

Expenditures and Other Financing
Uses:
Construction Services
Total Expenditures

Excess (Deficiency) of Revenues
Over/(Under) Expenditures

Additional Project Information:
Project Number
Grant Date
Bond Authorization Date
Bonds Authorized
Bonds Issued
Original Authorized Cost
Additional Authorized Cost
Revised Authorized Cost

Percentage Increase Over Criginal
Authorized Cost

Percentage Completion

Original Target Completion Date

Revised Target Completion Date

F-2a
Revised
Authorized
Prior Periods Current Year Totals Cost
$136,000.00 $ $ 136,000.00 $136,000.00
136,000.00 136,000.00 136,000.00
133,370.78 133,370.78 133,370.78
133,370.78 133,370.78 133,370.78
$ 262922 $ - $ 2,629.22 $ 262922
NIA
1/16/2011
$ 136,000.00
N/A
N/A
$ 136,000.00
N/A
$ 136,000.00
N/A
N/A
N/A
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EAST NEWARK BOROUGH SCHOOL DISTRICT

CAPITAL PROJECTS FUND

SCHEDULE OF PROJECT REVENUES, EXPENDITURES, PROJECT BALANCE AND PROJECT STATUS

BUDGETARY BASIS
ARCHITECTURAL SERVICES

FROM INCEPTION AND FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2012

Revenues and Other Financing
Sources:
Transfer from Capital Reserve
Total Revenues

Expenditures and Other Financing
Uses:
Purchased Professional and
Technical Services
Total Expenditures

Excess (Deficiency) of Revenues
Over/{Under) Expenditures

Additional Project Information:
Project Number
Grant Date
Bond Authorization Date
Bonds Authorized
Bonds Issued
Original Authorized Cost
Additional Authorized Cost
Revised Authorized Cost

Percentage increase Over Original
Authorized Cost

Percentage Completion

Original Target Completion Date

Revised Target Completion Date

Prior Periods Current Year

S $ 48,000.00

Totals

$ 48,000.00

1
[
o

Revised
Authorized
Cost

$ 48,000.00

48,000.00

48,000.00

48,000.00

34,108.81

34,108.81

34,108.81

34,108.81

$ - $ 13,891.19

$ 13,891.19

$ 48,000.00

N/A
N/A

$ 48,000.00
N/A
N/A

$ 48,000.00
N/A

$ 48,000.00

N/A
N/A
N/A
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EAST NEWARK BOROUGH SCHOOL DISTRICT
CAPITAL PROJECTS FUND
SCHEDULE OF PROJECT REVENUES, EXPENDITURES, PROJECT BALANCE AND PROJECT STATUS
BUDGETARY BASIS
CONSTRUCTION SERVICES
FROM INCEPTION AND FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2012

Revenues and Other Financing
Sources:
Transfer from Capital Reserve
Total Revenues

Expenditures and Other Financing
Uses:
Construction Services
Total Expenditures

Excess (Deficiency} of Revenues
Over/(Under) Expenditures

Additional Project Information:
Project Number
Grant Date
Bond Authcrization Date
Bonds Authorized
Bonds Issued
Original Authorized Cost
Additicnal Authorized Cost
Revised Authorized Cost

Percentage Increase Over Original
Authorized Cost

Percentage Completion

Original Target Completion Date

Revised Target Completicn Date

F-2¢
Revised
Authorized
Prior Periods Current Year Totals Cost
$ $ 517,000.00 $ 517,000.00 $ 517,000.00
517,000.00 517,000.00 517,000.00
146,358.50 146,358.50 517,000.00
146,358.50 146,358.50 517,000.00
% - $ 370,641.50 $ 370,641.50 $ -
N/A
N/A
$ 517,000.00
N/A
N/A
$ 517,000.00
N/A
$ 517,000.00
N/A
N/A
N/A
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G. PROPRIETARY FUNDS
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ENTERPRISE FUND
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ASSETS
Current Assets:
Cash and Cash Equivalents
Interfunds Receivable
Accounts Receivable:
State Sources
Federal Sources
Inventories
Total Current Assets

Total Assets

LIABILITIES
Accounts Payable
Total Liabilities
NET ASSETS
Unrestricted

Total Net Assets

EAST NEWARK BOROUGH SCHOOL DISTRICT
STATEMENT OF NET ASSETS
PROPRIETARY FUNDS

JUNE 30, 2012

Business-Type
Activities

Enterprise Fund

Food
Service

$ 18,596.70
111,672.00

87.11
6,214.64
269.24

136,849.69

_$136,64969

$ 6,397.76

$ 6,397.76

$130,451.93

_$130451.93
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EAST NEWARK BOROUGH SCHOOL DISTRICT

COMBINING SCHEDULE OF REVENUES, EXPENSES, AND CHANGES IN FUND NET ASSETS

Operating Revenues:
Charges for Services:

PROPRIETARY FUNDS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2012

Daily Sales - Reimbursable Programs

Total Operating Revenues

Operating Expenses:
Cost of Sales
Salaries
Employee Benefits
Purchased Services
Supplies and Materials
Management Fee
Equipment and Repairs
Total Operating Expenses

Operating Loss

Nonoperating Revenues:
State Sources:

State School Lunch Program

Federal Sources:

National School Lunch Program

National School Breakfast Program

Interest Revenue

Total Nonoperating Revenues

Change in Net Assets

Total Net Assets - Beginning

Total Net Assels - Ending

Business-Type
Activities

Enterprise Fund

Food
Service

_$ 1594365
15,943.65

49,205.96
32,612.44
8,330.63
1,695.55
5,251.70
7,474.50
14,721.49

119,292.27

(103,348.62)

1,732.26

80,339.71
22,900.44
109.22

106,081.63

1,733.01

128,718.92

$ 130,451.93
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EAST NEWARK BOROUGH SCHOOL DISTRICT
COMBINING STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS
PROPRIETARY FUNDS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2012

Cash Flows from Operating Activities
Receipts from Customers

Payments to Employees

Payments for Employee Benefits
Payment to Food Management Company
Payments to Suppliers

Payments to Equipment and Repairs

Net Cash Used for Operating
Activities

Cash Flows from Noncapital Financing Activities
State Sources

Federal Sources

Interfund Adjustment

Interest Earned

Net Cash Provided by Noncapital
Financing Activities

Net Increase (Decrease) in Cash and Cash Equivalenis
Balances - Beginning of Year

Balances - End of Year

Reconciliation of Operating Loss to Net Cash
Used by Operating Activities
Operating Loss
Adjustments to Reconcile Operating Loss to
Cash Used by Operating Activities:

Change in Assets and Liabilities:
(Increase)/Decrease in Inventory
Increase/{Decrease) in Accounts Payable

Total Adjustments

Net Cash Used by Operating Activities

Business-Type
Activities
Enterprise Fund
Food

Service

$ 15,043.65
(33,690.45)
(8,621.15)
(7,474.50)
(57,653.49)

(14,721.49)

_(106,217.43)

1,780.28
106,054.67
(22,486.92)

109.22
85,457.25
(20,760.18)
39,356.88

$ 18,596.70

$(103,348.62)

723.72

(3,592.53)
(2,868.81)

$(108,217.43
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INTERNAL SERVICE FUND
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H. FIDUCIARY FUNDS
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EAST NEWARK BOROUGH SCHOOL DISTRICT
COMBINING STATEMENT OF FIDUCIARY NET ASSETS
FIDUCIARY FUNDS
JUNE 30, 2012

HA
Agency

ASSETS Fund
Cash and Cash Equivalents $10,702.24
Total Assets $10,702.24
LIABILITIES
Payable to Student Groups $10,039.26
Interfunds Payable 632.20
Payroll Deductions and Withholdings 30.78
Total Liabilities 10,702.24

NET ASSETS $ -



EAST NEWARK BOROUGH SCHOOL DISTRICT
STUDENT ACTIVITY AGENCY FUND
SCHEDULE OF RECEIPTS AND DISBURSEMENTS
FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2012

H-3
Balance Cash Cash Balance
July 1, 2011 Receipts Disbursements June 30, 2012
Elementary School:
Student Activity Fund $9,067.69 $971.57 3 $10,039.26
Total $9,087.69 $971.57 $ - $ 10,039.26
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ASSETS

EAST NEWARK BCROUGH SCHOOL DISTRICT
PAYROLL AGENCY FUND
SCHEDULE OF RECEIPTS AND DISBURSEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2012

Cash and Cash Equivalents

Total Assets

LIABILITIES

Payroll Deductions and
Withholdings

Interfunds Payable - Net Payroll

Net Salaries and Wages

Total Liabilities

H-4

Balance Balance
July 1, 2011 Additions Deletions June 30, 2012
$ 646.88 $1,612,458.53 $1,612,442.43 3 66298
$ 646.88 $1,612,458.53 $1,612,442.43 $ 66298
$ 312.89 $ 661,377.97 $ 661,660.08 $ 30.78
333.99 298.21 632.20

950,782.35 950,782.35

$ 646.88 $1,612,458.53 $1,612,442.43 $ 66298
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LONG-TERM DEBT
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STATISTICAL SECTION (UNAUDITED)

20



INTRORBUCTION TO THE STATISTICAL SECTION
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FINANCIAL TRENDS
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EAST NEWARK BOROUGH SCHOOL DISTRICT
DIRECT AND OVERLAPPING PROPERTY TAX RATES
LAST TEN FISCAL YEARS

Unaudited
J-7
(Rate per $100 of Assessed Value)
Qverlapping Rates
Board of Education Municipal County Total
Fiscal General Rate Rate Direct and
Year Ended Basic Obligation Total East Hudson Overlapping
June 30 Rate Debt Service Direct Newark County Tax Rate
2003 $2.270 $ $2.270 $ 2610 $1.690 $ 6.570
2004 2.360 2.360 2.630 1.890 6.880
2005 2.430 2.430 2.720 1.820 6.870
2006 2.457 2.457 2.914 1.749 7.120
2007 2667 2.667 3.005 1.802 7474
2008 2.875 2.875 3.237 1.909 8.022
2009 2.873 2.873 3.373 1.551 7.798
2010 2.982 2.982 3.463 1.500 7.945
2011 3.070 3.070 3.529 1.763 8.362
2012 3.134 3.134 3.790 1.703 8.627

Source: District Records and Municipal Tax Collector
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Taxpaver

East Newark Town Center

1st Republic Corporation of America
Engelhard Corporation

Daving, LLC

VNB Realty

Simelog Properties, LLC

IDVG Realty, LLC

ARC Property Management, LLC
Philbro Corporation

Taxpayer #1

Taxpayer #2

Taxpayer #3

Taxpayer #4

Taxpayer #5

Total Assessed Value

Source: Municipal Tax Assessor

EAST NEWARK BOROUGH SCHOOL DISTRICT
PRINCIPAL PROPERTY TAXPAYERS
CURRENT YEAR AND TEN YEARS AGO

Unaudited
J-8
2012 2003
% of Total % of Total
Taxable District Net Taxable District Net
Assessed Assessed Assessed Assessed
Value Value Value Value
$ 7,337,800 18.56%
669,400 1.69%
727,200 1.84%
540,000 1.37%
488,500 1.26%
266,700 0.67%
200,400 0.51%
195,600 0.49%
190,800 0.48%
8,273,900 21.26%
1,284,000 3.30%
1,250,000 3.21%
589,400 1.51%
575,000 1.48%
$ 10,626,400 26.87% $ 11,972,300 30.77%
$ 39,543 583 $ 38,809,548
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Calendar Year

EAST NEWARK BOROUGH SCHQOL DISTRICT
PROPERTY TAX LEVIES AND COLLECTIONS

LAST TEN CALENDAR YEARS

School

Ended Taxes Levied

January 31, Fiscal Year
2003 $ 835,804.00
2004 946,768.00
2005 954,201.00
2008 991,201.00
2007 994,713.00
2008 1,175,758.00
2009 1,175,758.00
2010 1,175,758.00
2011 1,222,788.00
2012 1,247,245 .00

Source: District records including the Certificate and Report of Schoo! Taxes (A4F Form).

Unaudited
J-8
Collected Within the Fiscal
Year of the Levy
Collections in
Percentage Subsequent
Amount of Levy Years

£596,586.68 83.33% $139,317.32
946,768.00 100.00% 139,317.32

950,851.76 99.65% -
828,926.56 83.63% 3,349.24
914,691.24 91.96% 162,274.44
1,175,758.00 100.00% 80,021.76

1,175,758.00 100.00% -

1,175,758.00 100.00% -

1,222,788.00 100.00% -

1,247,245.00 100.00% -

Note: School taxes are collected by the Municipal Tax Collector. Under State Statute, a municipality is required
to remit to the school district the property tax amount voted upon and certified prior to the end of the school

fiscal year - June 30th.
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DEBT CAPACITY
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EAST NEWARK BOROUGH SCHOOL DISTRICT
RATIOS OF NET GENERAL BONDED DEBT OUTSTANDING
LAST TEN FISCAL YEARS
Unaudited

[
1
-
|-A

Percentage of
General Net General Actual Taxable
Fiscal Year Obligation Bonded Debt Value (a) of Per
Ended June 30 Bonds Deductions Quistanding Property Capita (b}

2003 $ 20,000.00 $ $ 20,000.00 0.05% 9
2004 - - - -
2005 - - - -
2006 - - - -
2007 - - - -
2008 - - - -
2009 - - - -
2010 - - - -
2011 - - - -
2012 - - - -

Notes:
(a) See Exhibit J-6 for property tax data.
{b) Population data can be found in Exhibit J-14.
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EAST NEWARK BOROUGH SCHOOL DISTRICT

DIRECT AND OVERLAPPING GOVERNMENTAL ACTIVITIES DEBT

AS OF DECEMBER 31, 2011

Unaudited
Debt
Cutstanding
Governmental Unit
Debt Repaid with Property Taxes:
Net Overlapping Debt of School District:
Borough of East Newark $ 3,024,252.89
County of Hudson 480,093,536.00

East Newark School District Direct Debt

Total Direct and Overlapping Bonded Debt
as of December 31, 2011

Source: Municipal Audit Reports

Estimated
Percentage

Applicable

100%
0.001%

Estimated
Share of
Cverlapping
Debt

$ 3,024,252.89
4,800.94

$ 3,029,053.83
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DEMOGRAPHIC AND ECONOMIC INFORMATION
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EAST NEWARK BOROUGH SCHOOL DISTRICT
DEMOGRAPHIC AND ECONOMIC STATISTICS
LAST TEN FISCAL YEARS

Unaudited

J-14
(c)
(b) Per Capita (d)
(a) Personal Personal Unemployment

Year Population Income Income Rate
2003 2347 R 73,463,447 R 31,301 R 5.6%
2004 2136 R 69477672 R 32,527 R 4.7%
2005 2,283 R 78,562,596 R 34412 R 9.1%
2006 2236 R 82,678,336 R 36,976 R 8.7%
2007 2184 R 86,152,248 R 39,447 R 3.9%
2008 2144 R 91,843,206 R 42884 R 5.2%
2009 2,129 91,172,296 R 42824 R N/A
2010 2,126 95,512,676 P 44926 R 9.4%
2011 2,126 N/A N/A 9.7%
2012 2,126 N/A N/A N/A

{a) Population information provided by the N.J. Department of Labor and Workplace Development.

(b) Personal income has been estimated based upon the municipal population and per capita personal income
presented.

{c) Per capita personal income by municipality estimated based upon the 2000 and 2010 Census published by the
U.S. Bureau of Economic Analysis.

{d) Unemployment data provided by the N.J. Department of Labor and Workforce Development.
N/A - Not Available at Time of Audit
R- Revised

P- Projected
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Emplover

East Newark Board of Education
Borough of East Newark

Tops Diner

Pic-Nic Restaurant

Valley National Bank

Garden State Community Bank

EAST NEWARK BOROUGH SCHOOL DISTRICT
PRINCIPAL EMPLOYERS
CURRENT YEAR AND TEN YEARS AGO

Unaudited
2012
Percentage
of Total
Municipal
Employees Employment
35 1.65%
3 1.46%
18 0.85%
13 0.61%
9 0.38%
8 0.38%
114 5.36%

J-15
2003
Percentage
of Total
Municipal

Employees Employment
62 2.61%
44 1.85%
37 1.56%
29 1.22%
16 067%
10 0.42%
198 8.33%
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~EAST NEWARK BOROUGH SCHOOL DISTRICT

INSURANCE SCHEDULE
JUNE 30, 2012
Unaudited
Coverage

School Package Property:

Property - Blanket Building and Contents $ 3,334,823

Comprehensive General Liability 1,000,000/2,000,000

Comprehensive Automaobile Liability for

Nonowned and Hired Only 1,000,000

Comprehensive Crime Coverage 25,000
Computers and Scheduled Equipment:

Data Processing Equipment 200,000
Boiter and Machinery:

Property Damage Included

Umbrella Liability

School Board Legal Liability:
Directors' and Officers’ Policy

Public Employees' Faithful Performance Blanket
Position Bond:
Evelyn Lassalle
R. Paul Vizzuso
Robert Knapp
Professional Liability - Nurses

Worker's Compensation:
NJSBA

Student Accident

Employee Dishonesty Bond

Source: District Records

5,000,000/1,000,000

1,000,000/2,000,000

75,000
150,000
150,000

Included in General Liability

1,000,000
100,000

10,000

Deductible

$ 500

1,000

500

2,600
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SAMUEL KLEIN AND COMPANY

CERTIFIED PUBLIC ACCOQUNTANTS K 1
550 BroaD STREET, 11T Froor 36 WasT MAIN STRERT, SUITE 303
NeEwark, N.J 07102-48543 FrEszgorD,N.J, O07728-2201
Prong (©783) 624-6100 PHoNE(732) 780-2600
Fax (973) 624-6101 Fax (732) 780-1030

REPORT ON INTERNAL CONTROL OVER FINANCIAL REPORTING AND ON
COMPLIANCE AND OTHER MATTERS BASED ON AN AUDIT OF FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS PERFORMED IN ACCORDANCE WITH GOVERNMENT AUDITING STANDARDS

The Honorable President and Members
of the Board of Education

East Newark Borough Board of Education

County of Hudson

East Newark, New Jersey 07029

We have audited the financial statements of the Board of Education of the East Newark Borough School
Disfrict, in the County of Hudson, State of New Jersey, as of and for the fiscal year ended June 30, 2012, and
have issued our report thereon dated October 8, 2012. We conducted our audit in accordance with auditing
standards generally accepted in the United States of America and the standards applicable to financial audits
contained in Government Auditing Standards, issued by the Comptroller General of the United States and
audit requirements as prescribed by the Office of School Finance, Department of Education, State of New
Jersey.

Internal Control Over Financial Reporting

Management of the Board of Education of the East Newark Borough School District is responsible for
establishing and maintaining effective internal control over financial reporting. In planning and performing our
audit, we considered the East Newark Borough Board of Education’s internal control over financial reporting
as a basis for designing our auditing procedures for the purpose of expressing our opinion on the financial
statements, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the East Newark Borough
Board of Education's internal control over financial reporting. Accordingly, we do not express an opinion on
the effectiveness of the East Newark Borough Board of Education's internal control over financial reporting.

A deficiency in internal control exists when the design or operation of a control does not allow management or
employees, in the normal course of performing their assigned functions, to prevent or detect and correct
misstatements on a timely basis. A material weakness is a deficiency, or a combination of deficiencies, in
internal control such that there is a reasonable possibility that a material misstatement of the entity's financial
statements will not be prevented, or detected and corrected on a timely basis.

Qur consideration of internal control over financial reporting was for the limited purpose described in the first
paragraph of this section and was not designed to identify all deficiencies in internal control over financial
reporting that might be deficiencies, significant deficiencies, or material weaknesses. We did not identify any
deficiencies in internal control over financial reporting that we consider to be material weaknesses, as defined
above.

MEMBERS AMERICAN INSTITUTE OF CERTIFIED PUBLIC ACCOUNTANTS
www.samuelklein-cpa-rma.com 119



Compliance and Other Matters

As part of obtaining reasonable assurance about whether the East Newark Borough Board of Education’s
financial statements are free of material misstatement, we performed tests of its compliance with certain
provisions of laws, regulations, contracts and grant agreements, noncompliance with which could have a
direct and material effect on the determination of financial statement amounts. However, providing an opinion
on compliance with those provisions was not an objective of our audit, and accordingly, we do not express
such an opinion. The results of our tests disclosed no instances of noncompliance or other matters that are
required to be reported under Government Auditing Standards and audit requirements as prescribed by the
Office of School Finance, Department of Education, State of New Jersey.

We noted certain matters that we reported to the Board of Education of the East Newark Borough School
District in a separate report entitled Audifor's Managemen!t Report on Administrative Findings - Financial,
Compiiance and Performance dated October 8, 2012.

This report is intended solely for the information and use of the audit committee, management, the East
Newark Borough Board of Education, the New Jersey State Department of Education, and other federal and
state awarding agencies and pass-through entities and is not intended to be and should not be used by
anyone other than these specified parties.

/ JOSEPH J. FACCONE
icensed Public School Accountant #194

SAMUEL KLEIN AND CO Aj:a/ -
CERTIFIED PUBLIC ACCOUNTAN

Newark, New Jersey
October 8, 2012
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SAMUEL KLEIN AND COMPANY

CERTIFIED PUBLIC ACCCUNTANTS K-2
550 BrROoAD STREET, 11TE Froon 36 WesT MAIN STREET, SUITE 303
NeEwAREK, N.J.07102-4543 Frerrorn, N.J. 07728-2291
Praorne (973) 624-6100 Pzowg (7532) 780-2600
Fax (973) 624-6101 Fax (732) 780-1030

REPORT ON COMPLIANCE WITH REQUIREMENTS THAT COULD HAVE A DIRECT

AND MATERIAL EFFECT ON EACH MAJOR FEDERAL AND STATE PROGRAM AND

ON INTERNAL CONTROL OVER COMPLIANCE IN ACCORDANCE WITH STATE OF
NEW JERSEY OMB CIRCULAR A-133 AND OMB CIRCULAR 04-04

The Honorable President and Members
of the Board of Education

East Newark Borough School District

County of Hudson

East Newark, New Jersey 07029

Compliance

We have audited the compliance of the Board of Education of the East Newark Borough School District, in the
County of Hudson, State of New Jersey, with the types of compliance requirements described in the U.S.
Office of Managerment and Budget (OMB) Circular A-133 Compliance Supplement and the New Jersey State
Aid/Grant Compliance Supplement that could have a direct and material effect on each of its major federal
and state programs for the fiscal year ended June 30, 2012. East Newark Borough Board of Education’s
major federal and state programs are identified in the summary of auditor's results section of the
accompanying schedule of findings and questioned costs. Compliance with the requirements of laws,
reguiations, contracts and grants applicable to each of its major federal and state programs is the
responsibility of the East Newark Borough Board of Education’s management. OQur responsibility is to
express an opinion on the East Newark Borough Board of Education’s compliance based on our audit.

We conducted our audit of compliance in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United
States of America; the standards applicable to financial audits contained in Government Auditing Standards,
issued by the Comptroller General of the United Stales; the audit requirements as prescribed by the Office of
School Finance, Department of Education, State of New Jersey; OMB Circular A-133, Audits of States, Local
Governments, and Nonprofit Crganizations, and New Jersey OMB’s Circular 04-04, Single Audit Policy for
Recipients of Federal Grants, State Grants and State Aid. Those standards, OMB Circular A-133 and New
Jersey OMB's Circular 04-04, require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance
about whether noncompliance with the types of compliance requirements referred to above that could have a
direct and material effect on a major federal or state program occurred. An audit includes examining, on a
test basis, evidence about the East Newark Borough Board of Education’s compliance with those
requirements and performing such other procedures as we considered necessary in the circumstances. We
believe that our audit provides a reasonable basis for our opinion. Our audit does not provide a legal
determination of East Newark Borough Board of Education’s compliance with those requirements.

In our opinion, the Board of Education of the East Newark Borough School District, in the County of Hudson,
State of New Jersey, complied, in all material respects, with the requirements referred to above that could
have a direct and material effect on each of its major federal and state programs for the fiscal year ended
June 30, 2012,

MEMBERS AMERICAN INSTITUTE OF CERTIFIED PUBLIC ACCCUNTANTS
www.samuelkiein-cpa-rma.com 121



Internal Control Over Compliance

The management of the Board of Education of the East Newark Borough School District is responsible for
establishing and maintaining effective internal control over compliance with the requirements of laws,
regulations, contracts, and grants applicable to federal and state programs. In planning and performing our
audit, we considered East Newark Borough Board of Education’s internal control over compliance with
requirements that could have a direct and material effect on a major federal or state program to determine the
auditing procedures for the purpose of expressing our cpinion on compliance, and to test and report on
internal control over compliance in accordance with OMB Circular A-133 and New Jersey OMB'’s Circular 04-
04, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of internal control over compliance.
Accordingly, we do not express an opinion on the effectiveness of East Newark Borough Board of Education’s
internal control over compliance.

A deficiency in internal control cver compliance exists when the design or operation of a control over
compliance does not allow management or employees, in the normal course of performing their assigned
functions, to prevent, or detect and correct, noncompliance with a type of compliance requirement of a state
program on a timely basis. A material weakness in internal control over compliance is a deficiency, or
combination of deficiencies, in internal control over compliance, such that there is a reasonable possibility that
material noncompliance with a type of compliance requirement of a state program will not be prevented, or
detected and corrected, on a timely basis.

Our consideration of internal control over compliance was for the limited purpose described in the first
paragraph of this section and was not designed to identify all deficiencies in internal control over compliance
that might be deficiencies or material weaknesses. We did not identify any deficiencies in internal control
over compliance that we consider to be material weaknesses, as defined above.

This report is intended solely for the information and use of the audit commiitee, management, the East
Newark Borough Board of Education, the New Jersey State Department of Education, and other federal and
state awarding agencies and pass-through entities and is not intended to be and should not be used by
anyone other than these specified parties.

nsed Public School Accountant #194
IN AND CO P::a/
CERTIFIED PUBLIC ACCOUNTANTS

SAMUEL

Newark, New Jersey
October 8, 2012
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EAST NEWARK BOROUGH SCHOQL DISTRICT

NOTES TO THE SCHEDULES OF EXPENDITURES OF FEDERAL
AWARDS AND STATE FINANCIAL ASSISTANCE

JUNE 30, 2012

1. GENERAL

The accompanying schedules of expenditures of federal awards and state financial assistance include federal
and state award activity of the Board of Education, East Newark Borough School District. The Board of
Education is defined in Note 1 to the Board's basic financial statements. All federal and state awards
received directly from federal and state agencies, as well as federal awards and state financial assistance
passed-through other government agencies is included on the Schedules of Federal Awards and State
Financial Assistance.

2. BASIS OF ACCOUNTING

The accompanying schedules of expenditures of federal awards and state financial assistance are presented
on the budgetary basis of accounting with the exception of programs recorded in the food service fund, which
are presented using the accrual basis of accounting. These bases of accounting are described in Note 2 to
the Board’s basic financial statements. The information in this schedule is presented in accordance with the
requirements of OMB Circular A-133, Audifs of States, Local Governmenlts and Nonprofit Organizations.
Therefore, some amounts presented in this schedule may differ from amounts presented in, or used in the
preparation of basic financial statements.

3. RELATIONSHIP TO BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The basic financial statements present the general fund and special revenue fund on a GAAP basis.
Budgetary comparison statements or schedules (RS} are presented for the general fund and special revenue
fund to demonstrate finance-related legal compliance in which certain revenue is permitted by law or grant
agreement to be recognized in the audit year, whereas for GAAP reporting, revenue is not recognized until
the subsequent year or when expenditures have been made.

The general fund is presented in the accompanying schedules on the modified accrual basis with the
exception of the revenue recognition of the last state aid payment in the current budget year, which is
mandated pursuant to N.J.S.A. 18A:22-44.2. For GAAP purposes, that payment is not recognized until the
subsequent budget year due to the state deferral and recording of the last state aid payment in the
subsequent year. The special revenue fund is presented in the accompanying schedules on the grant
accounting budgetary basis which recognizes encumbrances as expenditures and also recognizes the related
revenues, whereas the GAAP basis does not. The special revenue fund also recognizes the last state aid
payment in the current budget year, consistent with N.J.S.A. 18A:22-44.2.
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EAST NEWARK BOROUGH SCHOOL DISTRICT

NOTES TO THE SCHEDULES OF EXPENDITURES OF AWARDS
AND FINANCIAL ASSISTANCE

JUNE 30, 2012
(Continued)

3. RELATIONSHIP TO BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS {Continued)

There were no net adjustments to reconcile from the budgetary basis to the GAAP basis for the general fund
and the special revenue fund. See Exhibit "C-3" {the Notes to Required Supplementary Information) for a
reconciliation of the budgetary basis to the maodified accrual basis of accounting for the general and special
revenue funds. Awards and financial assistance revenues are reported in the Board's basic financial
statements on a GAAP basis as follows:

Federal State Total
General Fund $112,604.00 $3,329,5637.74 $3,442,141.74
Special Revenue Fund 549,596.79 129,300.00 678,896.79
Food Service Fund 103,240.15 1,732.26 104,972 .41
Total Awards and Financial
Assistance $ 765,440.94 $ 3,460,570.00 $4,226,010.94

4. RELATIONSHIP TO FEDERAL AND STATE FINANCIAL REPORTS

Amounts reported in the accompanying schedules agree with the amounts reported in the related federal and
state financial reports.

5. OTHER

Revenues and expenditures reported under the Food Distribution Program represent current year value
received and current year distributions, respectively. The amount reported as TPAF Pension Contributions
represents the amount paid by the State On-Behalf of the District for the year ended June 30, 2012. TPAF
Social Security Contributions represents the amount reimbursed by the State for the employer's share of
social security contributions for TPAF members for the year ended June 30, 2012.
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EAST NEWARK BCROUGH SCHOOL DISTRICT
SCHEDULE OF FINDINGS AND QUESTIONED COSTS
FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2012

Section I - Summary of Auditor's Results

Financial Statements
Type of auditor’s report issued: Unqgualified

Internal control over financial reporting:

1) Material weakness(es) identified? Yes Y
2) Significant deficiencies identified that are not
considered to be material weaknesses? Yes v
Noncompliance material to basic financial statements
noted? Yes v
Federal Awards N/A
Internal control over financial reporting:
1) Material weakness{es) identified? Yes N
2) Significant deficiencies identified that are not
considered to be maierial weaknesses? Yes N
Type of auditer's report issued on compliance for
Major programs: Ungualified
Any audit findings disclosed that are required to be
Reported in accordance with Section .510(a) of
Circular A-133. _ Yes _
ldentification of major programs:
CFDA Number{s) Name of Federal Program
84.010A Title I, Part A Basic
Dollar threshold used to distinguish between
Type A and Type B programs: $300,000.00

Auditee qualified as low-risk auditee? v Yes

No
None Reported

No

No

None Reported

No

No
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EAST NEWARK BOROUGH SCHOOL DISTRICT
SCHEDULE OF FINDINGS AND QUESTIONED COSTS
FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2012

Section I - Summary of Auditor's Results

(Continued)
State Awards
Type of auditor’s report issued on compliance
for major programs:
Ungualified
Internal control over major programs:
1) Material weakness(es) identified? ' Yes o No
2) Significant deficiencies identified that are not
considered to be material weaknesses? Yes \ None Reported
Any audit findings disciosed that are required to be reported
In accordance with NJOMB Circular Letter 04-047 Yes v No
Identification of major programs:
GMIS Number(s) Name of State Program
12-495-034-5120-078 Equalization Aid
Dollar threshold used to distinguish between
Type A and Type B programs: $300,000.00
Auditee qualified as fow-risk auditee? N Yes No

Section If - Financial Statement Findings

No financial statement findings that are required to be reported under Government Auditing Standards.

Section lll - Federal Awards and State Financial Assistance Findings and Questioned Costs:
a) Federal Award Findings and Questioned Costs:
There were no findings or questioned costs for federal awards.
b} State Award Findings and Questioned Costs:

There were no findings or questioned costs for state financial assistance.
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EAST NEWARK BOROUGH SCHOOL DISTRICT
SUMMARY SCHEDULE OF PRIOR YEAR AUDIT FINDINGS
FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2012

There were no prior years’ findings.
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